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We have highlighted the mission of “invest for a better life”, mtegrated the success of the culture o
new management team into current operations, and adhered to the “customer-first, all wins, harmony-
oriented, environmental friendly, result driven” philosophy, thus promoting sustainable corporate
development. This is proved that we proactively responded to stakeholders’ concerns and, in particular,
persisted with repaying investors’ trust with increasing returns and looking for good opportunities. We
will expand our business to other sectors that would have good opportunities. We ensure a steady supply
of quality products and considerate services to our customers, kept our promise to employees and paid
heed to their concerns, created a home-alike working environment and a broad development platform,
and proactively engaged in social welfare in return for the support and understanding of all walks of life.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBES

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board”) of Shihua
“We") and
all of its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to

Development Company Limited (the “Company” or
present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March
2015 to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

ANNUAL RESULTS

During the year, the Group implemented the Group Restructuring
to separate the distributed business and the scheme business
from the remaining business. The distribution in specie of shares
in distributed business took place on 26 June 2014 and the
creditor’s scheme was also came into effective on 27 February
2015. The remaining group has been streamlined its operations
to the trading business.

With the contributions from the new management and
employees, we have made a good progress in innovation
development on the current business of electronic products and
enhanced the Group’s value by expending our business in other
emerging business sectors. The revenue of the Group for this
year 2015 actually reached to approximately HK$382 million

representing year-on-year increase of 4% from last year.

PROSPECT

In accordance to the “Statistical Report on the National Economy
and Social Development of China 2014", the preliminary
review on the gross domestic product of the year amounted to
approximately RMB63,646.3 billion in which a 7.4% increase
over the previous year due to the China’s positive economic
development momentum in the year 2014-2015. With the
experience and network of the controlling shareholder in PRC,
the Group is planning to capture any good opportunities and
to formulate the business strategy with a view to diversify its
business to other sectors in order to broaden the revenue stream
of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBES

During the year 2015, the Group entered into two sale and
purchase agreements for the acquisitions of properties in PRC.
The two properties are located at the core commercial districts
of Benxi, Liaoning Province. The Group believes that the two
acquisitions will not only generate profitable income for the
Group but also started to diversify the business risk of the

Group.

In addition, the Group will highlight its core missions, pledge
to serve customers with innovation and qualities services and
capture any good opportunities to expand its business in a
prudent but efficient manner so as to achieve a sustainable
growth and enhance the values of the Group.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank my fellow directors, senior management
and all our staff for their performance and support. | would also
like to thank all our shareholders, suppliers, business partners
and customers, whose support has contributed to our success in
the past year.

By order of the Board
Wang Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WA

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
increased by 4% to HK$381,863,000 as compared to the
turnover of HK$366,953,000 in the previous year.

Electronic Division

The turnover of the Group increased by 4% during the year.
Segment gross loss reduced from HK$172,063,000 in the
previous year to HK$54,192,000 for the year ended 31 March
2015 due to the decrease in allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories and doubtful debts and impairment loss
in respect of property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$77,262,000 and the improvement of financial performance
after the group restructuring during the year.

Securities Trading

The Group recorded a segment loss of HK$18,000 for the year
due to decrease in the fair value of investment held for trading.

Property investment

The Group reported a segment profit of HK$16,868,000 for the
year due to increase in fair value of investment properties and
rental income received during the year.

Gross Profit/Loss Results

The Group’s turnover less cost of sales turned around from gross
loss of HK$41,904,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
gross profit of HK$59,052,000 for the year ended 31 March
2015. The significant improvement recorded for this year is
mainly due to the decrease in allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories and the result of reorganisation during the
year.

The Group recorded one-off losses during the year totally
HK$193,035,000 including the loss arising from the issue of
convertible bonds of HK$38,536,000, loss on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries of HK$15,553,000 and loss arising from distribution
in specie of shares in a subsidiary of HK$138,946,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

As a result, the loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March
2015 increased to HK$245,868,000 compared to the loss before
taxation for the year ended 31 March 2014 of HK$199,046,000.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained stable. As
at 31 March 2015, cash and bank deposits amounted to
HK$36,718,000, as compared to HK$28,046,000 last year.

As at 31 March 2015, gearing ratio calculated as 0.11,
convertible bonds (2014: 0.22).

excluding

The current ratio of the Group is higher than last year, it
increased from 0.76 to 1.48. This simply means that it is more
likely to pay off its liabilities more easily and there is no short-
term in solvency.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains its level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Financing and Capital Structure

In 2014, the total borrowings and net borrowings were
HK$70,774,000 and HK$41,651,000, but the Group does not
have any debt financing except for the convertible bonds as at
31 March 2015.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates

The Group’s transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi which have been relatively
stable during the year ended 31 March 2015. The exposure to
exchange rate risk was insignificant and had not employed any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged certain assets with
carrying value of HK$120,000 (2014: HK$235,904,000) to secure
general credit facilities and margin accounts with securities
brokers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR

Disposals

Disposals of distribution business and scheme business

With references to (i) the circular of the Company dated 24 May
2014 in relation to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Group
Restructuring, the Share Premium Reduction, the Distribution
In Specie, the CB Subscription Agreement, the Disposal and
the Framework Purchase Agreement and Creditor's Scheme and
(ii) subsequent announcements regarding the completion of
Distribution In Specie in a subsidiary, SIH Limited dated 26 June
2014, the effective of Creditor’'s Scheme to the transfer of the
interests in Scheme Subsidiaries dated 10 March 2015 and the
completion of very substantial disposal dated 13 March 2015,
the Group Restructuring has completed during the financial year
of 2015.

Upon the disposals of distribution business and scheme business,
the financial performance of the group has been improved as
a result of the streamline on the current business operations
of the remaining business and the enhanced flexibility on the
cost structure on sourcing the electronic finish goods at a more
competitive prices from various suppliers to meet the demands
of the customers.

Acquisitions

Acquisitions of the two properties in core commercial

district of Benxi, Liaoning Province, PRC

On 16 January 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of a property (the “First Property”)
in the PRC from an independent third party, at a consideration
of RMB105,000,000 as disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 31 March 2015. The First Property is located in the
intersection of Digong Road and Shengli Road, Mingshan District,
Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC which is the core commercial
district of Benxi. The site area and the preliminary gross floor
area of the First Property are 3,335.00 sq.m. and 17,788.58
sq.m. (including all the above ground andunder-ground areas)

respectively. It consists retail shops of approximately 3,000.00
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

sqg.m. on the ground floor of the First Property and the final
gross floor area of the First Property would not be less than
17,500.00 sgq.m..

On 17 March 2015, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement (amended and supplemented by
supplemental agreement dated on 27 April 2015) for the
acquisition of a property (the “Second Property”) in the PRC
from Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development Company
Limited (EFEEZ(SEE)FERE AR X A) (“Liaoning
Shihua”) which is a controlling shareholder of the Company.
The consideration of the acquisition is HK$208,276,000,
which shall be satisfied by the issue of promissory note of the
Company. The Second Property, being a property located at the
intersection of Huanshan Road and Guangyu Road, Pingshan
District, Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC, which is one of the
core commercial districts of Benxi. The Second Property is part
of the property development project of the Liaoning Shihua,
namely Shihua — Meilan City, and is a shopping mall at ground
floor and first basement floor. The preliminary gross floor area
of the Second Property are 23,700.06 sq.m. (including ancillary
facility). The main construction of the Second Property has been
completed and it can be used after decoration. The investment
costs incurred in relation to the development of the Second
Property paid by the Liaoning Shihua amounted to approximately
RMB188,773,000. The Second Property is subject to the premises
lease agreement to which the tenant has agreed to lease part
of the ground floor and first basement floor of the Second
Property, totalling 14,908 sq.m., for operating a “Wal-Mart”
store in or about August 2016 for an initial term of 20 years. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 June
2015, the completion of the acquisition of the Second Property
shall take place on or before 31 August 2015 following the
satisfaction of all of the conditions precedent.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Board will formulate the long term business plans and
strategy of the Company and will actively capture opportunities
not only in the existing type of business but also in various
emerging business sectors to achieve a better results and faster
growth for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

Except for the acquisition of the Second Property, the Group has
not executed any agreement in respect of material investment
or capital asset and did not have any other future plans relating
to material investment or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.

PROSPECT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

It has been the Group’s business strategy to diversify its business
and further enhancing the Shareholders’ value. In addition to
the existing projects, the Group is also committed to seek other
business opportunities (including possible opportunities for the
development of renewable energy business) in order to broaden
the revenue stream of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, no target company has been identified, and no letter
of intent, agreement or similar arrangement has been entered
into by the Group. Should such opportunities materialise,
announcement(s) will be made by the Company in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total staff of 50 of which
35 were employed in the overseas for the Group’s marketing and
distribution business. The total remuneration of the employees
(including the Directors’ remuneration) was approximately
HK$43,123,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015. The Group
provides employee benefits such as staff insurance, retirement
scheme, discretionary bonus and share option scheme and also
provides in-house training programmes and external training

sponsorship.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROF|LE
EENGHEEERBE

DIRECTORS AS AT 25 JUNE 2015 (DATE OF
DIRECTORS’ REPORT)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing, aged 60, has been appointed as executive
director and the Chairman of the Board with effect from 21 July
2014. He is a vice chairman of Liaoning Federation of Industry
and Commerce (EEHTHEMKSE), a Liaoning Province Model
Worker (EZEEYEEE) in 2006, and a member of People’s
Congress of Benxi City (A EM A A EK). He has founded Liaoning
Shihua Property and he had been appointed as the general manager
HEEFELME) (“Liaoning Shihua Group”)
since April 2007. He currently acts as the chairman of Liaoning

of Liaoning Shihua Group (&

Shihua Group. He has also been an executive member of the
Property Development Industry Association of Liaoning Province
(EELEEWETERHE FEIESE) since March 2012. In February 2014,
Mr. Wang was awarded as “Liaoning Province Excellent Builder”
(BEHEFER
United Front Work Department of the Chinese Communist Party
(FHETL

other listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Wang Jing is

) by various organisations including the Liaoning

Z i #E). Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in

the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is the chairman of

nomination committee.

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, aged 27, has been appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from 21 July 2014. Mr. Wang graduated from the University of
Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce with high distinction
in 2009. He also obtained a master of philosophy degree in finance
from the Judge Business School of the University of Cambridge
in 2010. He is currently the deputy general manager of Liaoning
Shihua Group and is also the Shenyang regional general manager of
Liaoning Shihua Group. Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies in the last three years. He is the son of Mr.
Wang Jing, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
EERENREEERE

Mr. Chen Wan Jin, aged 53, has been appointed as executive
director with effect from 21 July 2014. He obtained a
postgraduate certificate in Economic Law from Capital University
SKREZ) in 2002. He has
been the president and party branch general secretary of South
Branch of Benxi City Commercial Bank (AE g% E1TRIM 1T
TREEZZHELRL) since March 2010. Mr. Chen did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the last three years.

of Economics and Business (& EBAS &

Mr. Zhao Shuang, aged 35, has been appointed as executive director
with effect from 21 July 2014. He graduated from Changchun
University (K&AXZ) in 2002, major in marketing and sales. Mr.
Zhao was appointed as the head of assets management of Liaoning
Shihua Group in 2009 and later the general manager of Liaoning
Shihua Group responsible for assets management in January 2014.
Prior to joining Liaoning Shihua Group, Mr. Zhao has been a project
manager, assistant to general manager and vice general manager
of Dalian Dongzhan Group Co. Ltd (RBREEE AR A F]) from
2002 to 2009. Mr. Zhao did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the last three years.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Li Jun, aged 63, has been appointed as non-executive director
with effect from 21 July 2014. He graduated from Beijing Open
University (AEEREAEKXEZ) in the field of industrial and economics
management in 1988. He was the general secretary of Liaoning
EE AR R E
&) from 1997 to 2007. Mr. Li was appointed as the Benxi regional

Province Benxi City Real Estate Association (&

vice general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group in 2007, and the
general manager of Liaoning Shihua Property Group in 2014.

12 Shihua Development Company Limited Annual Report 2015
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Xin Hua, aged 62, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 21 July 2014. Mr. Yang
completed a four-year programme in steel rolling equipment
manufacturing and craft (8L ERE KR TE) at North-eastern
Heavy Machinery Academy (RILER M ZEFT) in June 1977. He
was the chairman and general manager of Bei Tai Iron and Steel
(Group) Co., Ltd. b & #l# (£E) BREAEME AT and he has been
a part-time professor at Yanshan University (%11 A£2) since 2002.
Mr. Yang is the chairman of remuneration committee and the

member of audit committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 45, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 21 July 2014. Mr. Wang
has over 15 years of experience in corporate finance, audit and
accounting. He is currently an executive director and chief financial
officer of China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1269). Before
that, Mr. Wang worked as vice president in EV Capital Pte Ltd
from May 2007 and March 2010. From February 2004 to March
2007, he served as chief financial officer for China Jishan Holdings
Limited (FREFE LIZER AR A R, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of Singapore Stock Exchange. From September
1999 to August 2002, he served as a senior accountant and
subsequently a manager for audit department of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University
(AR AZ) majoring in Economics and Management in 1993 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-Sen University (FF1LUAE2) in 2004.
He is a non-practicing member of Shanghai Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wang is currently acting as the independent
non-executive director of Chongyi Zhangyuan Tungsten Co., Ltd
(stock code: 002378.s5z), China Hangking Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3788), China Tianrui Group Cement Company Limited (stock
code: 1252), Shenzhen Fuanna Bedding and Furnishing Co., Ltd
(stock code: 002327.sz) and Jiayao Holdings Limited (stock code:
1626). Mr. Wang is the chairman of audit committee and member
of remuneration committee.
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Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny, aged 43, has been appointed as
independent non-executive director with effect from 21 July
2014. He obtained a bachelor’s degree of business administration
in accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1996, a master of science degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2006 and
a degree of executive master of business administration from
Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in December 2009. Mr. Cheng was admitted as an
associate of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
July 1999 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 2001. Mr. Cheng has years of
experience in management, financial reporting and management
accounting. Mr. Cheng worked for a subsidiary of Li & Fung Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange from January 2005 to June
2012. Mr. Cheng is currently the chief executive officer of a private
group. Mr. Cheng is the member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee.

Senior Management

Gary Atkinson, aged 34, joined The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
in January 2008 and was appointed as the interim Chief Executive
Officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson is a licensed attorney in
the State of Florida and Georgia. He graduated from the University
of Rochester with a Bachelors Degree in Economics and has been
awarded a dual-degree J.D./M.B.A. from Case Western Reserve

University School of Law and Weatherhead School of Management.

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 76, was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of Cosmo in January 2001. He is the co-founder of Cosmo Canada
and has been its CEO since 1988. Mr. Horak has extensive knowledge
and experience in distribution of consumer electronics products in
Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in 1982, Mr. Horak worked
with several top electronic companies and served as Sanyo’s Vice
President of Sales and Marketing. He leads the sales team to open
new markets and develop new products and works closely with the
administrative group and warehouse supporting group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CHERHE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The board of directors (the “Directors”,
each a “Director”) of the Company (the “Board”) firmly believes
that the maintainance of a good, solid and sensible framework
of corporate governance will ensure the Company to run its
business in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code on
corporate governance practices and guidance.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has
complied with the Code except the following:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by
private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited Company
Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e)
of the 1989 Act, director holding office as executive chairman or
managing director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of
the Company (“the Bye-laws”). As the Company is bound by the
provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to
fully reflect the requirements of the code provision A.4.2 which
stipulates that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

As complied to the code provision A.4.2, all directors will be
voluntarily returned from his directorship at the subsequent
annual general meetings of the company at least once every
three years, provided that, being eligible for re-election, they
may offer themselves for themselves for re-election at the annual

general meeting.
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Pursuant to A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-executive
director and other non-executive director should attend general
meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Yang Xin Hua and Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny,
the independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Li Jun, the
non-executive director, were unable to attend the annual general
meeting and special general meeting of the Company held on
5 September 2014 due to their other business commitments.
In order to comply with the code provision, the Company will
continue to furnish all Directors with appropriate information on
all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to arrange
the schedule in such a caution may enable all Directors to attend
the general meeting as far as possible.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Code throughout the year 31 March 2015 and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices
of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible
and effective manner. Each Director has to carry out his
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.

The Board consists of four executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. The
members of the Board as at the date of this Annual Report are
as follows:—

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Wan lJin

Zhao Shuang

Non-Executive Director
Li Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Yang Xin Hua

Wang Ping

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny
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The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for
the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company. The brief biographical details and relationship of the
Directors are described on page 11-14 of the Annual Report.

Mr. Wang Jing, the chairman of the Board and the executive
Director, is the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, the chief
executive officer and the executive Director. Save as disclosed
herein, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

Role of the Board

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’'s financial performance
and management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets,
the implementation of internal controls procedures, and ensuring
of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Chairman and Chief Executive

In accordance with A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be
performed by same individual in which Mr. Wang Jing and Mr.
Wang Xing Qiao are the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company respectively.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:—

o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

J review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Non-Executive Director

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the Code,
non-executive directors should be appointed for specific term,
subjected to re-election. Mr. Li Jun, as the non-executive
Director has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which is appointed for the service with
the Company for a fixed term of two years from 21 July 2014 to
20 July 2016 and renewable automatically for successive terms
of one year each commencing from the day next after the expiry
of the current term of the appointment. The appointment shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) 20 July 2017 or (ii) the date on
which the director ceases to be director for any reasons pursuant

to the Bye-laws or any other applicable laws.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standard of financial
and other mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company pursuant to which each of them is appointed for
the service with the Company for a fixed term of two years from
21 July 2014 to 20 July 2016 and renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year each commencing from the day
next after the expiry of the current term of the appointment.
The appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 20 July
2017 or (ii) the date on which the directors ceases to be director
for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws. The Board confirms that the Company has
received from each of the independent non-executive directors
a confirmation of independence for the year ended 31 March
2015 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Director’s Training and Professional Development EERIIREXERRE

Under the code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in RIETRIIEXEA6SE  EFFLXNBEZER
continuous professional development to develop and refresh & UBERENKFEHFES 2 M ML ARERE
their knowledge and skills; and to ensure that their contributions HEHIEBERX TUAMEHEZEEREHEE - KA F]
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated #EBEEBITAEETHERNBEREN ST
briefings for directors will be arranged and reading materials on ZHZ LB TIENBBEME - KARHE 22
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. SF2MNMAMEIIRIE  ERABAQREE -

The Company encourage all Directors to attend relevant training

courses at the Company’s expense.

Based on the training records provided by the Directors, REEZRHEZEZIGE BN -2 —NF, =
the Directors participated in the following training during Z—RFLETFE : —

2014/2015:—
Attending expert
Reading briefing/seminars/
regulatory conference
updates/ relevant to the
attending business/director’s
in-house briefing duties
SMEY, ESHE
MEEEEHER HERERERE
Name of directors EEEB SMAAERE mea g8
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Jing T & Y -
Wang Xing Qiao TEF Y -
Chen Wan Jin PRE & Y -
Zhao Shuang iz Y -
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Li Jun 3 Y -
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHITES
Yang Xin Hua R Y
Wang Ping FF Y Y
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny EIYNZ] Y Y
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEFaREE A B FHM
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors and members of the senior &HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HIFE E=ENaH
management by band for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set EBIEAEBZHBSEEEIINOT

out as below:—

Remuneration bands (HK$) No. of persons s EOET) A&
$100,000 to $500,000 4 100,0007c2500,0007T 4
$500,001 to $1,000,000 1 500,0017C%1,000,0007C 1
BOARD MEETINGS EERgR

Board meetings are held regularly at approximately quarterly EEZRezETHNEREZTERT— K UEBLAE
intervals to review the financial and operating performance of EHKEELEXRIER W JoEEXBREERTHEEFS
the Group and also held on ad hoc basis as required by the % - 2REERARTPHAUESHZEELS
business needs. All Directors are given an opportunity to include H&R8 - AHEEHE X FBEME FBIAFTR
matters for discussion in the agenda and give opinion. Regular HEEHESEReZNETESRESE -HE_=
Board meetings and ad hoc Board meetings are attended by a @—FH&E=A=+—H|IFE KL2rEEEZEEA
majority of the directors in person or through other electronic @iz BEERHBIT1INESREHE -
means of communication. During the year ended 31 March 2015,

other than resolutions passed in writing by all the Directors, the

Board held a total of 17 Board meetings.

Number of Board
meetings attended/held

HE BITESR
Name of directors EEnA BEAH
Wang Jing” RN 9/9
Wang Xing Qiao" TEE 9/9
Chen Wan Jin” REw 9/9
Zhao Shuang” fii=E 9/9
Li Jun™ TE" 8/9
Yang Xin Hua™** R 8/9
Wang Ping™*” FF 3/9
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny™” Ly N = 3/9
Philip Lau Sak Hong* 285 FR 6/8
Anthony Lau Sak Kai* 21855 8/8
Andy Lau Sak Yuk* 2§58+ 8/8
Carol Lau Chu Lan* By 7/8
Peter Hon Sheung Tin## FRAAMEH 4/8
Chan Chak Chung*#* [ 32 (rh 4/8
Chuck Winston Calptor### HE B 2/8
Tang Yee Man## BE R 2/8

20  Shihua Development Company Limited Annual Report 2015



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

appointed as executive director on 21 July 2014
appointed as non-executive director on 21 July 2014
appointed as independent non-executive director on 21 July
2014

w resigned as executive director on 21 July 2014

#  resigned as non-executive director on 21 July 2014

## resigned as independent non-executive director on 21 July
2014

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”),
conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.

as the code of

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2015.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its
expertise, there are three Board committees namely, the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
formed under the Board, with each performing different

functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has been established with defined terms of
reference in alignment with the recommendations set out in “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions
set out in the Code of the Listing Rules. During the year, the
composition of audit committee was as below:—

Mr. Wang Ping (Independent
non-executive Director)

Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Independent
non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny
(Independent non-executive
Director)

Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin
(Independent non-executive
Director)

Mr. Chan Chak Chung
(Independent non-executive

(appointed as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)
(appointed as member on 21

July 2014)
(appointed as member on 21
July 2014)

(ceased as member on 21 July
2014)

(ceased as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)

Director)
Mr. Tang Yee Man (Independent (ceased as member on 21 July

non-executive Director) 2014)

The audit committee members meet no less than twice a year
with the senior management or the external auditors. The role
and function of the audit committee include: to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
other financial reporting matters, to assure the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the financial statement of the Group,
discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
throughout the Group and most importantly, and to review all
significant business affairs managed by the executive directors in
particular on connected transactions.

The committee also provides advices and recommendations
to the Board and oversees all matters relating to the external
auditors, and it plays an important role in monitoring and
safeguarding the independence of external auditors.
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The audit committee met twice during the financial year ended
31 March 2015. Works undertaken by the audit committee
included:

o reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 and for the six months ended 30 September
2014,

o reviewing of the auditor’s fees and its re-appointment; and

o reviewing internal control and risk management system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established with defined
terms of reference.

During the year, the composition of remuneration committee

was as below:-

Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Independent (appointed as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)

(appointed as member on 21

non-executive Director)
Mr. Wang Ping (Independent

non-executive Director) July 2014)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (appointed as member on 21
(Independent non-executive July 2014)

Director)

Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin (ceased as member on 21 July

(Non-executive Director) 2014)
Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor (ceased as member on 21 July
(Independent non-executive 2014)

Director)
(ceased as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)

Mr. Tang Yee Man (Independent
non-executive Director)

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract
and retain executive needed to run the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst taking into account performance of the individual.
The remuneration should reflect performance, complexity
and responsibility of the individual, and the remuneration
package will be structured to include salary, bonus and share
options scheme to provide incentives to directors and senior
management to improve their individual performances.

ERZEENHE_T-AF=-A=1+—HILWR
FEEHMR BHREZBEMETZTIERE

ENEE_ZT—RAFE=A=+—RHBLtEER
BE_Z-—-NFABA=1THILNEAZHK
]k

o EMZEHMEREEEET K

o BENNPELEREREEGE o

FMEES
ARTBRIHMESE - LHERBEGE -
AFE - HMEEROERDT © -

BIEEE(BY (RZE—HF+-A-_+—B#

FHITER) RERTIENREER)
TEREBY (RZE—NF+tA=-+—HE
FRITES) ZERZEE)
BRHYEEBYL (RZE—WFLA=Z+—HE
FEMITESR) ZERZH)
BAEALE (RZEB—WmELtA-+—HFF
CGETES) (FXE)

BELAE(BY (R-_T—NFLtA-t+—BfF
FERITESR) F£8)

HEREE(BY (R-Z—NFtA-+—HF
FRITESR) EERREZR)

AREEEBEESHFMBEK - ARSI REBEBALE
B EEMBEZITHAR - XABTTHRASHET
BEERRKE - FARFZE LERNKRE - HUER
REHBETzRE  BEHERBE  MHEMES
ZRBEREF T  CARBREE  REER
BREEABRHEER  UEARSEMKRR -

“E-REFR BEBRRERATY 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERRE

The role and function of the remuneration committee
include formulation of the remuneration policy, review and
recommending to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and

determination of the remuneration of the Directors.

The remuneration committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2015. Works undertaken by the
remuneration committee during the year included:-

° reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2014/2015; and

o reviewing of the remuneration of the Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the board on appointment of directors
regarding the qualification and competency of the candidates,
also considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors so as to ensure that all

nominations and appointments are fair and transparent. During

the year,

below:—

Mr. Wang Jing
(Executive Director)

Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Independent
non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny
(Independent non-executive
Director)

Mr. Chan Chak Chung
(Independent non-executive
Director)

Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor
(Independent non-executive
Director)

the composition of nomination committee was as

(appointed as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)
(appointed as member on 21

July 2014)
(appointed as member on 21
July 2014)

(ceased as Chairman and
member on 21 July 2014)

(ceased as member on 21 July
2014)

(ceased as member on 21 July
2014)
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The nomination committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2015. Works undertaken by the
nomination committee during the year included:-

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o to make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

° to review and make recommendations to the Board on re-

election of retiring directors.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each committee members during
the year ended 31 March 2015 is show as below. All business
transacted at the above meeting are well-documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

REREBEeREREBE_T—HFE=A=+—H8I1t
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ZEEE3
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R B PR D) R (R 22 A R T

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee

EVEEE yMEEE REEEE

Number of Number of Number of

meetings meetings meetings

Name of directors EEHSE attended/held attended/held attended/held

HE BT HRE BT HE BT

BERY BERE BERY

Wang Jing* fmt - — _

Yang Xin Hua* 5 11 11 -

Wang Ping* B 171 1/1 -

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny* N2l 11 171 -

Peter Hon Sheung Tin** R E 11 - 11

Chan Chak Chung* e 2 { 11 - 11

Chuck Winston Calptor# BEBM - - -

Tang Yee Man® HER - - -

# appointed as committee members on 21 July 2014 # RZZE—NFELA-+—HEZTAZEY
K8

# ceased as committee members on 21 July 2014 # RZE—NFtAZ+—AFFEEZEEKE
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has formulated and adopted a board diversity
policy since 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity
of the board.

The board recognizes the importance of having a diverse board
in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate governance.
A diverse board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills,
background and other qualities of directors of the Company and

industry knowledge and experience, education,

does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee set up in 2012 is responsible for
identifying and nominating candidates for appointment to the
Board and submitting those candidates for the approval by the
Board.
of experience, expertise,

It takes responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix
skills and diversity required on the
board and assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board and overseeing the board succession.
It is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the board in
relation to board diversity.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy
and setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Lo Tai On (resigned as company secretary
on 21 July 2014) and Mr.
secretary on 21 July 2014) are the company secretary of the

Lam Wai Kei (appointed as company

Company in the respective periods. Mr. Lam Wai Kei has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement

under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 are analysed as follows:

Audit Service HK$3,562,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditor of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use of disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliances with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
During the year, the Company has conducted review the
effectiveness of system of internal control including risk
management system and also the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function and also made recommendations to
follow up.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATION

The board recognizes the importance of good communication
with the shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formation channels, which include interim and annual

reports, announcements and circulars of the Company.

The general meetings of the Company are valuable forum for
the board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The
shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of
the Company.

An annual general meeting of the company was held on 5
September 2014 (the "2014 AGM"), and 4 special general
meetings including two adjourned special general meetings
(the “2014 SGM") were held on 16 June 2014, 19 June 2014
and 5 September 2014. A notice convening the 2014 AGM
contained in the circular dated 25 July 2014 was despatched
to the shareholders together with 2014 Annual Report and the
notice convening the 2014 SGM contained in the circular was
despatched to the shareholders on 24 May 2014 and 13 August
2014. The Board of Directors attended the 2014 AGM and 2014
SGM to answer questions from the shareholders.
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The Chairman of the meeting of 2014 AGM and 2014 SGM —ZT—NFERRAFAEN —T—NFERREFHIA
explained detailed procedures for conduction of a poll. All the EEXFMEBZBREKRZHANETRRZFHEF -
resolutions proposed at the 2014 AGM and 2014 SGM were R-ZE—FERFBEFAER T —POFREFH
passed separately by the Shareholders by way of poll. The A& LIEEZHARZEDERRINIZBHITE
results of the poll were published on the websites of the Stock RO BIBIB o w45 BN A S % T3 FOBE R B Je AR
Exchange and the Company after the meeting. N E) A .

The attendance record of the directors at general meeting of the BEEXFEARAREAREG 2 HELEEHIIMT
Company is set out below:—

Number of
general meetings
attended/held

Name of directors EEHR HE/BITIRRERAEREH
Wang Jing” RN 2/2
Wang Xing Qiao” TEFS 2/2
Chen Wan Jin* e -
Zhao Shuang” i -
Li Jun™* TE -
Yang Xin Hua™" T -
Wang Ping™” FF 2/2
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny*™* 1y N 2 -
Philip Lau Sak Hong* 285 FR 3/3
Anthony Lau Sak Kai 2455 3/3
Andy Lau Sak Yuk* 2185 m 3/3
Carol Lau Chu Lan* R 3/3
Peter Hon Sheung Tin*# FEAEE 3/3
Chan Chak Chung*# BER 2B (e # 1/3
Chuck Winston Calptor### HE B 1/3
Tang Yee Man*## B R -
*  appointed as executive director on 21 July 2014 R ZIEMFEELAS T —HEZAARITES
“* appointed as non-executive director on 21 July 2014 TR ZE—NMF+EAZt+—BEZEAEIERTT
5=
" appointed as independent non-executive director on 21 July ** R-Z—pE+ A -+ —BEEZFABIIE
2014 ¥ﬂf?§$
#  resigned as executive director on 21 July 2014 R ZE-NELA T+ ARERTES
#  resigned as non-executive director on 21 July 2014 o ORZE-—MFL A+ —HEBEERTES

##4%  resigned as independent non-executive director on 21 July ## R—-F—pUEL+H -+ —BEETEIEHT
2014 B=

—E-AEEHR BEBRRERATY 29
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The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on 2 September 2015 (the “2015 AGM"). A notice
convening 2015 AGM will be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched together
with the 2015 Annual Report to the shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Code.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and

analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

The Company has changed its corporate website address from
www.starlight.com.hk to www.00485.hk with effect from 20
October 2014, where updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and news

can always be found.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:—

Address: Rooms 05-15, 13A/F., South Tower, World Finance
Centre, Harbour City, 17 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: +852 2208 6008

Email: jlam@Inshihua.com

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting
and put forward proposals at general, meeting. Please refer to
the procedures as follows:

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general

meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of
business specified in the requisition.

30  Shihua Development Company Limited Annual Report 2015

RRARBER-ZE—hFNA - BRTEERREF
RE([ZZF-—HFRRABFRE])) - —_T—AF
RERIBE RSB MBS TN RAR R
uh o WiER - T - RFFHRSRIE QAR ST
EERATERTERTETRR -

ARBHAMBEREE BB RE KU 2 FHNOEE
R-EESREEEEARBREERDOMERTR
RHFE SHEBERARAZENER

KA FEEE QB # U B www starlight.com.hk
EAwww.00485.hk - B —WF+A=+H
ER e RABUMKEENEBRR AR EBERRE
B UBEMKEEZRNER -

BRRABEEAFNEAEOLANEERIELSE
AL BHARFBOT - —

Wik - EENERLPEEREI17THREERERERS

R A OED FE13AM205-15F

BE:
e

B RER
REAEEREEREEHIAE RAREAS LI
2% - FLWTIEREF -

+852 2208 6008
jlam@Inshihua.com

(a) FREMBRRBIIXEZRF

RIHBREAFETIIR T2 —WEH#E
MAIRARBBRRREG EREZARASE
PRz R AIARIBEA AR 2 X B 408 & B R
E-NAN—FREDEAEZRHARWEER
REFBZEMBLE  EXREERABE
FRIRGREZBRKEINHZFER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

(b)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 Shareholders may, at their expense, provide a
written request to the attention of the Company Secretary
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Besides, the updated Memorandum of Association and
Bye-laws of the Company has been posted on the website
of the Company at www.00485.hk and the designated
website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

There were no material changes to the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

CONCLUSION
The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of

corporate governance reflects the quality of the management

and the operations of the Group's businesses. Good corporate

governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective

allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.

The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice

in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,

strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s

corporate governance.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

By passing of a special resolution on 5 September 2014, the
name of the Company has been changed from “Starlight
International Holdings Limited” to “Shihua Development
"BEERARDR"
as the secondary name of the Company has been adopted with
effect from 18 September 2014.

Company Limited” and the Chinese name

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the design, sale of a wide range
of electronic products, investment in properties and securities
trading.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51.

Details of the special dividends by way of distribution in specie
of shares in a subsidiary are set out in note 11.

Other than the special dividends, the directors of the Company
have determined that no dividends will be paid in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman) (appointed on 21 July 2014)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 July 2014)

Chen Wan Jin (appointed on 21 July 2014)

Zhao Shuang (appointed on 21 July 2014)

Lau Sak Hong, Philip (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Lau Sak Kai, Anthony (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Lau Chu Lan, Carol (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Non-Executive Directors
Li Jun (appointed on 21 July 2014)
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Yang Xin Hua (appointed on 21 July 2014)

Wang Ping (appointed on 21 July 2014)

Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny (appointed on 21 July 2014)
Chan Chak Chung (resigned on 21 July 2014)
Chuck Winston Calptor (resigned on 21 July 2014)
Tang Yee Man (resigned on 21 July 2014)

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.2 of the Code, all directors
will be voluntarily retired from his directorship at the subsequent
annual general meetings of the Company at least once every
three years, provided that, being eligible for re-election, they
may offer themselves for themselves for re-election at the annual

general meeting.
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In addition, Mr. Wang Jing, who is the chairman of the Company
and not subject to the retirement by rotation pursuant to the
Starlight International Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda, will voluntarily retire from his directorship and eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which the former executive Directors
have substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are
set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” of the

annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its controlling entities or its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and
share options of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long position in the Shares

EECRESFES
BE_T-AF=A=+t—8 QREIEHFLHE
Bl &5 REIR GG ) BEXVERET R8N B Z K
ERAMEARNRIRBABARZMARRARA([BEX
) (BREREESEBEHRIN BB KF
BREFXRER/FEZEBEIARR) + ROIREE
7 R VR R DI 8352 R A A0 82 10 B o Pt B S fff
HORBBMRAESF LRI LRI 2 L
METABFETESFR G ZBEETA([REST
A DEBRAARBI LB RRABDSESHT
BITBRABRARARREMBBZB(ERERESFK
HIE RIS XVER) 2 Bt & B8 i 2 #E 25 SR & 4D
T

(i) RROZRA

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Long position/ No. of share capital
Name of Director Short position Capacity Shares held in the Company
EARRABE#ET
EEHA R %R& 240 HREE RABMAOBE DL
Executive Director
BITES
Wang Jing Long Position Interest of controlled 1,085,755,571 44.61%
corporation (Note)
T RE MNEEREE 2 s (PR EE)
Note: These 1,085,755,571 shares are held by Achieve Prosper MizE : 52%1,085,755,57 1 IRIRDBERELRH

Capital Limited (“Achieve Prosper”), which is a company
incorporated in Samoa and wholly and beneficially owned
by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited (a company
incorporated in Hong Kong), which is in turn wholly and
beneficially owned by EZEEZE(KE)FHEREAR AT
(Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development Company
Limited*) (“Liaoning Shihua Property”). Mr. Wang Jing is
the sole director of and the beneficial owner of 82.8% of
the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua Property. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is deemed to be interested in
these 1,085,755,571 shares.

RAF([ELNEE - ELANEED
HElRKL AR BEBEEERBR
RAI(REBEBFMKLZAR)2EEE
EHAE MBEEEELBRARAREE
BEE(EE)EHERZEARABN(E
EEERWE ) 2ELEEHAE- TS
EHEREBEEEERMEZE—ESAA
H828%WiE 2 BHHA A RIEE
HSRBMEHED TREERTAREKS
1,085,755,57 1 B& B0 R i A2 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EEZHA5EH(£E)
(CONT’D)
(ii) Long position in the underlying Shares (ii) RIEBEREZER

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of underlying share capital

Name of Director Shares held in the Company
EARRABE BT

BFEHA FrizEER D EE BAMOE DL

Executive Director

WITEE

Wang Jing 436,046,511 17.92%

T

Note: These underlying Shares represent the conversion Shares Wi : ZEHEBROAR-ZT—NFLA=1

AR TERZANEEA75,000,000% T
Z AR EHF TR T BT 2 BRRAR
e RBEFFLBERD - EREER
BARZEBRGO R EE#E -

which are issuable upon the exercise of the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 granted
to Achieve Prosper on 30 July 2014. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is deemed to be interested in such
underlying shares.

(iii) Directors’ interests in the shares of associated (jii) ZTEENEBEIERG 2L
corporations
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Name of in Achieve the issued
associated Name of Long/short Prosper Capital share capital
corporation Director Capacity position Limited in the Company
BEERER
BRARZ AR ARE#IT
R EEERE EEpE 514 RE/%KR ZRRHE REABHNES
Achieve Prosper Wang Jing Interest of Long position 1,000,000 100%
Capital Limited controlled (Note)
corporation
ERERNERAR E& THRARER KA (PRFEE)
Z K
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(CONT'D)

(iii) Directors’ interests in the shares of associated
corporations (CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
Shares in subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the
Company or its subsidiaries, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, none of the Company’s directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

EEvESER(E)

(iii)

ESRABEERD 2 EE(F)

B EXFREE REEUAARRREME R
BIAERETAFEMB AR ZE TRIEAR
o RERERATARLREERNER
BEE E2THABRWEZBBEALR
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B0 2 Em At - BERD RESTE
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share options of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10
years. The primary purpose is to recognise the contribution of
participants and to recruit and retain high calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme included any full time employees
(including directors, whether executive or non-executive and
whether independent or not), suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of passing the relevant ordinary resolution at the general
meeting while overall limit for all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any 12
month period up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option is any period as determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, which shall not be more than 10 years from the date
on which the option is granted. The option may be exercised by
the grantee at any time during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the
Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing
price of shares on the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer
date.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

The offer of a grant of share options can be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer. The consideration for the grant is
HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be refundable.

Reference is made to the composite offer and response
document dated 30 June 2014 (the “Composite Document”)
jointly issued by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited (the “Offeror”)
and Starlight International Holdings Limited (presently named as
“Shihua Development Company Limited”) (the “Company”) in
respect of the mandatory unconditional cash offers by Kingston
Securities Limited, on behalf of the Offeror, to acquire all the
issued Shares (other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it),
and to cancel all the outstanding Share Options of the Company.

As at 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 21 July 2014, being the latest
time and date for acceptance of the Listco Offers (as defined
in the Composite Document), the Offeror had received valid
acceptances in respect of Share Options conferring rights on the
Optionholders to subscribe for a total of 1,078,423 Shares under
the Option Offer.

After 21 July 2014, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Scheme.

BRE(E
KRR ZBREE)

BB BT E B4 0 A28 H B -
EHEREZRBAIET  ReBEEAMERT
TR -
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RABRKRUBLT BB RRR 2232 #TRMN
(BB REE-BITPALECHARRER TK
B2 BMBRIN) MG E T A MR R B AR IR
2l RGNS B

RZE—HFELAZ+—RH(EH ) TFHEBE
(BEgEmEmAnlEER(EEREE X)) 2 &
EERAM)  WEFEKREBRERBESEE
T TR A ARIES 1,078,423 Ik 15 4
NZERES R 2 BBER -

KoB—EEEA=+— A ARAREEEZ
BB TR S AR -

—E-AEFHR BEBRRERATY 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

The movements of the share options granted to certain

employees and advisors of the Group pursuant to the Scheme

were as follows:

AAT 2 WA (E)

RIEHEIE BT AREE TR EREMN 2 HREY
BERMT

Number of share options

BREHE
Balance Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Balance
Exercise as at before during after as at close of
Date of grant Notes price 1.4.2014  Listco Offers Listco Offers Listco Offers Listco Offers
REGAF REMAR REGAT REMAT
RIB-ME  WEEZES  WBERR  WEEEE  WEEEEL
BB Mzt T8 WA—-B#&H 217 B BN e
HK$
B
Employees: Eg:
28.1.2008 ZZENF-AZFNB () 0.2053 732,311 (177,734) (376,843) (177,734) -
31.8.2010 “Z-ZFN\R=F—H () 0.1880 5,000,000 (5,000,000) - - -
25.10.2012 “E-—%+A-t+RH () 0.1000 9,000,000 (9,000,000) - - -
14,732,311 (14,177,734) (376,843) (177,734) -
Advisors: B
23.1.2008 ZZENF-AZ+=HA () 0.2228 701,580 - (701,580) - -
12.8.2010 “E-ZF\A+=H (b) 0.1880 300,000 (300,000) - - -
26.2.2013 “E-ZFZAZtRE @) 0.1230 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - - -
6.3.2013 —Z-=F=f"H (a) 0.1320 1,600,000 (1,600,000) - - -
4.10.2013 —Z-=F1AEA (a) 0.1150 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - - -
21.10.2013 “Z-=F+A=+-A () 0.1200 800,000 (800,000) - - -
6,901,580 (6,200,000) (701,580) - -
21,633,891  (20,377,734) (1,078,423) (177,734) -
Notes: P&
(a) These options were granted for an exercise period of five years (a) 77 e A 4 ATy B R R S B B HR T AR T TAE o
from the date of grant of the options.
(b) These options were granted for an exercise period of ten years (b) 7 = g O fo T (R BEE IR S U B R AR B TP o
from the date of grant of the options.
() 1,078,423 options were cancelled and 177,734 options were () BER-"Z-—NE+A-+—RB(EH ) TFMN

automatically lapsed under the Listco Offers closed at 4:00 p.m.

on Monday, 21 July 2014.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share options of SMC, a 51.48% owned subsidiary of the

Company

The movements of the share options granted to certain

employees of the Group pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as

follows:

BREE

SMC (X DRHEES1.48% BB LE) 2BR
;-

BBSMCEHEIEBRTFAEEE TRE CEREZE
BEIAT ¢

Number of share options

BREHAE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
Exercise as at during during during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2014  the period the period the period  30.9.2014
—E-mF —E2-mE
mA—A AA=+H
R BH fT1EE HATE HAERE HRES Hre gk i) RATE
uss$
=S
29 November 2004 —EEME+—-AZ+tAIH 0.75 40,000 - - - 40,000
1 December 2004 —ZEZNFE+-F—H 0.77 20,000 - - - 20,000
9 May 2005 —EERERANA 0.60 34,000 - - - 34,000
31 March 2006 ZEERF=A=1—H 0.32 60,000 - - - 60,000
10 April 2006 —EERENATH 0.33 42,000 - - - 42,000
31 March 2007 ZEE+E=A=+—H 0.93 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2008 —EEN\E=ZA=+—H 0.45 80,000 - - - 80,000
31 March 2009 —EENEFE=ZA=F—H 0.1 80,000 - - - 80,000
31 March 2010 —E-TE=R=+—H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 “E-ZETA-TAH 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 —T——F=fF=+—H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 ZE—ZF=RA=1—H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 “T—=F=Zf=+—H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 —Z-=%+tH—H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 —E-mE=R=+—H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
1,816,000 - - - 1,816,000
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year, the Company or any of its subsidiaries did not
engage with a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons, other than
the interest disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES”, had interest in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company have notified
to the Company and have been recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

BEROIEZ2ZH

RAFER  ARBXEEMHERRHE2EIE
B - AR R EFEEIWBAR R R AR E
ENBERE 2 B B MBS F s o

FERR

RZZBE-AF=A=+—H UTAL(RIEER
WH S | THMBREEINFEARRRD RAE
RS %IA L2 s - WEME AR E R
RARBIZREZ MG RO EXVEIE3361RRER
BEZIZREROEZIARERMA

Aggregate
Number of percentage of
shares and issued share
underlying capital as at
Name of shareholders Nature of interest shares 31 March 2015
EHME=ZZE-1F
IR K 1888 =A=+-H
REREMWE, HA EEME RHOBE BBTRANEDL
Achieve Prosper Capital Limited Beneficial owner 1,521,802,082 62.53%
EERERBRAF EnfEE A
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,521,802,082 62.53%
EREEERER A REEREE 2 Em
Liaoning Shihua Property Interest of controlled corporation 1,521,802,082 62.53%
BEBEFME M EHESR 2 s
Hu Bao Qin Spouse Interest 1,521,802,082 62.53%
HE=S I B s
China Yinsheng Securities Limited Custodian corporation/Approved 400,000,000 16.44%
FERKESHER A A lending agent
REREFAEERE
As at 31 March 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited held RZZTE—RAF=A=+—H EXLELXGRAF

as beneficial owner interest in 1,085,755,571 shares and
436,046,511 underlying shares of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONT'D)

As at 31 March 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited (“Achieve
Prosper”) is a company incorporated in Samoa and wholly and
beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited (a
company incorporated in Hong Kong), which is in turn wholly
and beneficially owned by Liaoning Shihua Property. Mr. Wang
Jing is the sole director of and the beneficial owner of 82.8%
of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua Property. By virtue of
the SFO, Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, Liaoning Shihua
Property, Mr. Wang Jing and Ms. Hu Bao Qin were deemed to
be interested in the said 1,085,755,571 Shares and 436,046,511
underlying shares held by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited.

As at 31 March 2015, China Yinsheng Securities Limited was
interested in 40,000,000 Shares as a custodian corporation or an
approved lending agent.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31 March 2015, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests or short positions in shares of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 16% and 50%
respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 55% and 74%
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

FERR(E)

RZE—RAF=ZA=+—H ELELFRLA
([Z8]) (REESEMRYZAG)AESEE
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. No
director or any of his associates, and executive is involved in

dealing with his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

In 2015, the Group had the following non-exemped continuing
connected transaction within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

Purchase Framework Agreement

On 30 June 2014, the SIH Limited, a company incorporated
in the BVl on 21 September 1989 with limited liability which
upon completion of the group restructuring would operate
the distributed business and a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company prior to the distribution in specie, (“Privateco”) and
Treasure Green Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a framework purchase agreement (“the Framework
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Privateco and its
subsidiaries (“Privateco Group”) would sell and the Company
and the remaining subsidiaries upon completion of the Group
Restructuring and the distribution In specie and the creditors’
scheme becoming effective (“Remaining Group”) would purchase
certain electronic products in accordance with the terms of the
Framework Purchase Agreement. The relevant members of the
Remaining Group and the Privateco Group would from time to
time enter into individual agreements in respect of the sale and
purchase of the relevant electronic products. The initial term
of the Framework Purchase Agreement shall commence from
the date of completion of the distribution in specie up to and
including 31 March 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (CONT’D)
Purchase Framework Agreement (CONT'D)

The transaction contemplated under the Framework Purchase
Agreement, upon completion of the distribution in specie,
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by virtue of the Privateco
Group being an associate of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, who
is a director of a subsidiary of the Company and a director of
the Privateco, and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As certain applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the annual cap of the continuing connected
transaction contemplated under the Framework Purchase
Agreement are more than 25%, the Framework Purchase
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder
constitute non-exempted continuing connected transaction of
the Company that is subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On the special general meeting of the Company held on 19 June
2014, the Framework Purchase Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder were approved by the Independent
Shareholders.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transaction contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in the
table below. Details of the Purchase Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 24 May 2014.

W EAE 28 1 8 (42

BEEXRBABETHETZIRIETKEY DIRE
BRARANETRAUFI4AZTE T ZRBEBRER
5 BRAEAAMARBIEEMAZBREEZHEA
T RBEEEABARTNBLAGEERLARF
EF EAMAAARRLETAABETZHEEAL -
AR BEEERBRE TRETIRERERIZF
EERZETHRAEALESN25% @+ WEEIE
BREREBE THRET IR HERARRZIERE
HEBAERS  AETEMRAEI4AZTE T 2H
] FIEAH REE B AR RIERE -

RARBRZZ—MOFERATNBRITRRERNK
CRY BEERBAREBTRETZIRZOHRE
B RRALE ©

BEERGRATHEATZRZBEE_T—H1F=
A=t—ALFEZFELRIERZ ST HET
T - BEERGBEZFBEREREARRBESNR
T-NFRAZFTMHAZBE -

Amount Annual Cap
| FELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Purchase of electronic products BSIH Limited X E KB A7)
from SIH Limited and its BEMNETERWE)
subsidiaries (Note) 38,991 150,000

Note: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip is a director of SIH Limited, who is also

a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

The amount of the above transaction did not exceed the
corresponding annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March
2015 as announced by the Company.

BEE : BISHEELAEASIH Limited 2 &% TAAQ TN

BRRAIZES -

PR SEIRBBEARBMAMERE_T—HF
ZA=ZtT - HUMBEEZREFELR -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (CONT’D)
Purchase Framework Agreement (CONT'D)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the
auditor of the Company, to review the Group’'s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transaction disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The
conclusion contained in such letter is set out below.

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction has not been approved by the Company’s
Board;

b) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transaction was not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transaction; and

) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transaction set out above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transaction has
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in previous circular dated 24 May 2014 made by the
Company in respect of the disclosed continuing connected
transaction.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
transaction and the aforesaid Auditor’s letter and confirmed that
the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b) on normal commercial terms; and
) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

46  Shihua Development Company Limited Annual Report 2015

BEXS(E)
B AT 2R 1 ()

RIE EMRAFE14A561K - ARRICEFET
MERD ST ZEM] BERRR ZKE
am REBESAMAGSHRANEEERRER
AR FE30005% EXABEMBEVBHERAINZ
T BEERINZ2ZEBHRBETLIONRBEREE LT

JﬁﬁLTiztﬁﬁLX%E’ﬂ?%lﬁﬂiufiJ HAREHE
E’]Tﬁn\,\ Ih X% TT%E@

REEERE ETRAE14AS6IKE L BREES

Rttt Bh#EBEHAEE EXAREZFHER

LX%Z%"L@&,WW o KRR B E AR ERED K 14 BIAR
2B B KEARDT

a) BEEREMNEESBREMEMRESSE
FERX U ABERRFEERILE

b) BEEREMNEESBRSEAEEARIN
FEERTELARRBIREBEBIZNEH
BEETT &

) REABEEERZNERSENE - HE
ERAEMNEEERREMEMRBEFERE
RHBHARRRARBERBERER IR
TR A =+ AfEH Y SR K AT
BEReaHFEEE-

BYUFATEFCENERRIH R Dl = EA &K
1¢ ﬁﬁwuﬁ@ﬁ,tﬁﬁ )(5)75 .

a) MAEEZ - EABEBBEPET

b) R — R R GRRETT - R
o REREAUIZNEEGHRELET M5

BERERAFEIE  UHARRZBENE -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting
period of the Group are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non-executive directors to
be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less than
25% of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2015
were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
25 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBEHRESF

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHIHUA DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shihua Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 51 to 173, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBOBES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBMBES

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEakEME2ERER

or the year ended 31 Marc

BE_FT-RAF=HA=1— E!Lt#*/*

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TERT FET
Turnover EHE 5 381,863 366,953
Cost of sales 8 AR (322,811) (408,857)
Gross profit (loss) EF(1E) 59,052 (41,904)
Other income E A 6 12,722 16,245
Distribution costs ol =] DN (30,961) (46,406)
Administrative expenses THEMA (78,655) (87,556)
Other gains and losses HAb Uk & g 1a 7 (12,006) (7,650)
Increase (decrease) in fair value BEWMEZ T EEEMORID)
of investment properties 13 5,550 (22,111)
Interest expenses MEFZ (9,014) (10,315)
Loss arising from the issue of BORBREREEZEHE
convertible bonds (38,536) -
Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ TE&ZAS AR ZHEBA R EiE 36 (15,553) -
Loss arising from distribution in specie EYDIRNBRRKGEEZEE
of shares in a subsidiary 37 (138,946) -
Share of profits of an associate JE B & A E) i F 479 651
Loss before taxation BRiAIEE 8 (245,868) (199,046)
Taxation W 10 (1,263) 9,682
Loss for the year FEEIE (247,131) (189,364)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Emerml=(Fx)
Items that may be subsequently HiggEFsrEEEm2IER:
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on BREGINEREEZERZRE
translation of foreign operations 8,135 429
Release of translation reserve upon B ARELLGA ARRRE
deconsolidation of subsidiaries REEz#E 36 (3,237) -
Release of translation reserve upon BEMD KM BARROERE
distribution in specie of shares P e
in a subsidiary 37 (795) -
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEMb2E KA 4,103 429
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEM2MEE X (243,028) (188,935)
Loss for the year attributable to: THATEIEFERE
Owners of the Company ZA/NIE7 RSN (246,934) (193,036)
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR RE S (197) 3,672
(247,131) (189,364)
Total comprehensive (expense) income THATEGEFE2ZE (A KA
for the year attributable to: BEE
Owners of the Company ZN/NIEF N (243,649) (192,699)
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS = 621 3,764
(243,028) (188,935)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share FhkEE 12
— Basic and diluted —EARREE (11.84) (11.04)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R

At 31 March 2015

RZF—AF=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-mEF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
P EE FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties WEMFE 13 - 254,825
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 14 3,639 77,787
Prepaid lease payments FERHERIA 15 - 3,290
Goodwill HES 17 17,665 17,665
Interest in an associate REEE QRS 19 6,845 6,366
Available-for-sale investments e ZRE 20 - 9,400
Deferred tax assets BEERBEE 31 18,258 18,951
Long-term prepayments RHITERR 22 746 -
Deposit paid for acquisition WEMEmMN &
of a property 45(a) 76,600 -
123,753 388,284
Current assets mENE E
Inventories FE 21 75,123 80,842
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEWERTE ~ 4 MTEN A 22 43,993 31,530
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERA 15 - 121
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 23 453 475
Pledged bank deposits BERBITER 24 - 1,077
Bank balances and cash RITETFRBA S 24 36,718 28,046
156,287 142,091
Current liabilities mE B &
Creditors and accrued charges FENTBRIE R FERT B 25 90,741 103,400
Amount due to a shareholder e IR R A 26 172 12,000
Amount due to immediate R EEERARRIE
holding company 27 14,871 -
Taxation payable FET AR I8 - 1,080
Borrowings BE 28 - 68,805
Bank overdrafts HRITES 24 - 1,969
105,784 187,254
Net current assets (liabilities) MEBEE(BE)FE 50,503 (45,163)
Total assets less current liabilities BREERLBEE 174,256 343,121
Non-current liabilities EnBAaE
Long-term creditors RHABRIA 25 20,081 -
Convertible bonds g E A 30 56,875 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEBE 31 - 4,995
76,956 4,995
Net assets BEZFE 97,300 338,126
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

RZF—AF=A=1+—H

2015 2014
“E-EF —E-MmF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FET FHET
Capital and reserves AR AN K &

Share capital & 32 243,381 201,343
Reserves & (161,337) 120,373

Equity attributable to owners RRRIEE AR
of the Company 82,044 321,716
Non-controlling interests IR = 15,256 16,410
Total equity arE 97,300 338,126

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 56 were S52BEES6BMEBZFRAMBHRE  RZF—
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HAFANAZTHBHBEEFHIZAERKETE - I H

25 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: TIEERKREE
& TEF
Wang Jing Wang Xing Qiao
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE_FT-—R¥=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to
non-controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests
ARAREARL FERERL
Share
Other option
property Share  Convertible ~ Capital Share of  reserve
Share Share  Merger Capital revaluation ~Translation option notes/honds redemption Contributed Accumulated net assets of  of a listed
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus losses  Sub-total subsidiaries ~ subsidiary  Sub-total Total
-%LF
TER B WELS
Efehz BRE 3/ EEE £ gt WERE  ZBRE
Bk REEE ANEE EAER  EREE  AEER B B5ER L Bk L Mt EERE Eid it it
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin T
At 1 April 2013 =£RA-A 162,731 137,855 37,138 106 52,578 9,290 5,031 5560 292,448 - (984 472893 11,067 764 1831 48474
Exchange difference arising on translation SHELERER
of foreign operations - - - - - 337 - - - - - 337 9 - 9 49
(Loss) profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - (193,036)  (193,036) 3672 - 3672 (189,364)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FERRENE(RR 8
for the year - - - - - 37 - - - - (193,036) (192,699 3,764 - 3764 (188,93
Capital contrbution from non-controlling ~ HBATHEABRR L
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 8 - 58 58
Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiay BB ALENBRRIHES - - - n - - - - - - - 2 ) - ) -
Issue of shares upon exercise TEREREERE R
of convertible notes 34,904 6,956 - - - - - (5,560) - - - 36,300 - - - 36,300
Issue of shares upon exercise ERBEAEREIRG
of share options 3,708 2012 - - - - (1,120 - - - - 4,660 - - - 4,660
Recognition of equity-settled TEREENRI T AR
share-based payments - - - - - - 8 - - - - 8 - m m 861
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends - - - - - - - - - - 458 48 - - - 48
At 31 March 2014 01343 146,883 37,138 128 52,578 9,627 3,993 - 92448 - ) e 14,867 1543 16410 338,126
Exchange difference arising on translation
of foreign operations - - - - - 1317 - - - - - 1317 818 - 818 8,135
Release of translation reserve upon
deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 36) - - - - - (3.231) - - - - - (3.231) - - - (3231)
Release of translation resenve upon
distribution in specie of shares
in a subsidiary (note 37) - - - - - (795) - - - - - (795) - - - (795)
Loss for the year FERRR - - - - - - - - - - (6% (4693 (197) - (197)  (47,131)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  AEERENE (R 4%
or the year - - - - - 3,285 - - - - (246930)  (43,649) 621 - 621 (243,028
Capital contribution from non-controling
shareholders of & subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 59 - 59 59
Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary - - - 16 - - - - - - - 16 (16) - (16) -
Issue of convertible bonds - - - - - - - 61,480 - - - 61,480 - - - 61,480
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 5 2,038 1,088 - - - - (468) - - - - 2,658 - - - 2,658
Issue of shares 40,000 24,000 - - - - - - - - - 64,000 - - - 64,000
Transaction costs incurred in connection
with issue of convertible bonds - - - - - - - (115) - - - (115) - - - (115)
Transfer of share premium to
contributed surplus (note) - (419n) - - - - - - - W - - - - - -
Release of reserve upon deconsolidation
of subsidiaries (note 36) - - - - (8391) - - - - - 8,391 - - - - -
Release of reserves upon distribution in
specie of shares in a subsidiary - - (3113%) - (4487) - - - - - 81305 - - - - -
Special dividends by way of distribution
in specie of shares in a subsidiary
(notes 11 and 37) - - - - - - - - - (124002 - (124062 - - - (124062
Distribution in specie of share in
a subsidiary (note 37) - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,121) - 2,121) 2121
Recognition of equity-settled
share-nased payments - - - - - - - - - - - - - 303 303 303
Cancellation and lapse of share options R&H - - - - - - (3,529) - - - 3505 - - - - -
At 31 March 2015 RZF-1E=A=1-A 243,381 24,000 - 144 - 12912 - 61365 292,448 2909 (576,115) 82,044 13410 1,846 15,256 97,300
Note: Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special general Mz : BREAQAFTR-_Z—NENATALBRITZRE
meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2014, an amount of HRAIAE F@BCZHIDRER  ROBEERK
HK$147,971,000 standing to the credit of share premium has 18147,971,0008 T E W AR L BEABA R o
been reduced and transferred to contributed surplus.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

or the year ended 31 March 20

BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

2015 2014
—Z-1F —T-DnF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B FEx FTERx
Operating activities BEET
Loss before taxation R Al ES 18 (245,868) (199,046)
Adjustments for: HE
(Reversal of allowance) allowance AR (BBEREDEEB
for doubtful debts (163) 2,152
Allowance for obsolete and BRERBHETE 2 BE
slow-moving inventories 3,677 62,570
Bad debt written off AR - 1,217
Decrease (increase) in fair value BEEBEZREZNTER
of investments held for trading A (&) 22 (479)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREBITE
and equipment 3,583 8,375
Dividend income from investments KIEEEZREZKREWA
held for trading (4) (10)
Impairment loss recognised in respect HOE BERREERZ
of property, plant and equipment EEE - 16,054
(Increase) decrease in fair value BEWMERAFEBEGEN)RD
of investment properties (5,550) 22,111
Increase in fair value of financial BERBEAFBENAERZ
assets designated at fair value ERMBEEZATEBELM
through profit or loss - (9)
Interest expenses FERAx 9,014 10,315
Interest income FEMA (58) (15)
Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries MEARIEILGE AR EE 36 15,553 -
Loss arising from distribution in BEYH RN E R BIRD 2 B8
specie of shares in a subsidiary 37 138,946 -
Loss arising from the issue of BITAMRRESEECER
convertible bonds 38,536 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEDE  BMENMEREESE
plant and equipment (W) 118 (16,433)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERNB ARz & 38 - (440)
Share of profits of an associate JEIEHEE N AR (479) (651)
Release of prepaid lease payments BNHEERIBRE 90 121
Effect of foreign exchange rate REBGRERSHNTE
change on inter-company balances 2,005 907
Share-based payments LR B ERE 2 5K 303 861
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREDRcEERENR
in working capital (40,275) (92,400)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEM) RS (1,884) 42,117
(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits FEUERIE « e RIBNFIE
and prepayments (3 ) &t (14,757) 3,341
Decrease in investments held for trading BEEEZRERD - 1,047
Increase in creditors and accrued charges FEATBRIE M FEAH & ARG AN 9,432 37,270
Cash used in operations EEMACHES (47,484) (8,625)
Dividend received from investments held BEEERE 2B G
for trading 4 10
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEABEEMNEH - (792)
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid Ef AR DA (570) (554)
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded HEhRAR B R DOFIE - 455
Net cash used in operating activities REEBRMAZR®F8 (48,050) (9,506)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
GBERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_FT-—NnF=A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—T-RE —E-mF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B TER TERT
Investing activities BEEE
Withdrawal (placement) of pledged EEFRTFFER(FR)
bank deposits 1,077 (1,077)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  HELREREHE
plant and equipment 312 16,815
Interest received B F B 58 15
Net cash outflow from deconsolidation MEAREILEGE K2
of subsidiaries BemtFeE 36 (4,224) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of a property  WE—EBMEMRN LS (12,600) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEEWY BEREE (467) (3,350)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBREZMEREA 38 - 440
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEETERERAFEETA
assets designated at fair value BRZEMEEMSHRE
through profit or loss - 34
Net cash (used in) from investing activities REEH(FTBE)FMMEZHEEFHE (15,844) 12,877
Financing activities METY
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BITARRES 2 3508 75,000 -
Advance from immediate holding company B ZZRA LK 14,871 -
Short term loans raised FESE s BHER 3,600 8,400
Proceeds from issue of shares upon TR RERBITRMATEFIR
exercise of share options 2,658 4,660
Net advance from (repayment of) EHRBENEOERR
trust receipts and import loans and EAERBEZER Y
loans related to bills discounted BHRER)FH
with recourse 819 (25,730)
Advance from a shareholder AR B 172 12,000
Capital contribution from B A REEAR AR R &
non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary 59 58
Interest on bank and other borrowings paid 2 {HR7T R Efb{EEF & (3,735) (7,468)
Net cash outflow from distribution EMDIRMBARKRG 2
in specie of shares in a subsidiary Be R FE 37 (17,609) -
Repayment to a shareholder BEREZE (1,000) -
Transaction costs incurred in BOIARKREFEEZZHEA
connection with the issue of
convertible bonds (212) -
Repayment of short term loans BRERHER - (5,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities @& EBE(FTA) 2B /FE 74,623 (13,080)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RekReEEEE 2
cash equivalents EMCRD)FE 10,729 (9,709
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FReREEEEHEE
of the year 26,077 35,806
Effect of exchange difference EREBIVE (88) (20)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FX3B ¢ KR & EEIER 36,718 26,077
Analysis of balances of cash RekRESEEBZ
and cash equivalents EEOW
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 36,718 28,046
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (1,969)
36,718 26,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

On 30 January 2014, certain shareholders of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(as supplemented by supplemental agreement dated 21
March 2014 and the second supplemental agreement
dated 19 May 2014) to dispose of an aggregate of
1,076,758,361 shares in the Company to an independent
third party. Upon the completion of the transaction on
26 June 2014, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, which was
incorporated in Samoa, and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited,
which was incorporated in Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the
design, manufacture and sale of a wide range of
electronic products, property investment and securities
trading.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in
the current year:

ERMEREET 2ERBUME
BEEA(EEHMBREE
2l 1)

RAER  AEEEEREA TN EESE
HEA® (BB R MR ])EMH2H %
RASIEETE BB WS R -

Amendments to

Investment entities

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and
HKAS 32 financial liabilities

Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures for
HKAS 36 non-financial assets

Amendments to Novation of derivatives and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC) = INT 21 Levies

The application of the above new interpretation and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

or the year ended 31 Marc

BE_FT-RAF=HA=1— Ei#*f‘

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONT'D)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
Amendments to
HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 27

Financial instruments’
Regulatory deferral accounts?
Revenue from contracts
with customers?
Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle®
Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle*
Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 cycle®
Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®
Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception®

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initative®

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions*
Equity method in separate financial

statements®
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60

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"”) (CONT'D)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier

application permitted.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is

permitted.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 "“Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONT'D)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONT'D)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed

review.
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—HESAS+—HIHEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONT'D)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONT'D)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payments”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
"Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Basis of consolidation (CONT'D)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted (i.e. the
non-controlling interests share of recognised identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition) and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued
and any proceeds from disposing of partial interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESBE(E)

(CONT’D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D) REEATZ2RE(E)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the WMEEEREAEBE  BMEQNTETRIRS

Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits (FIHESFABE) EEBERAZ

and losses resulting from the transactions with the HmBAEBEECBERAT - HEiE A EE

associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated IRGMEEZRAFREER  FEREAEE
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the FA P BmRTHER -

associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition PN i

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WARBE WS ERREZ AT EEE 18

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable REBEBFEEERZEWRSE - WK

for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of TR EEARIE o

discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the EmHEERARERENEREEED &

goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time % BLATATA IR = RS RERR

all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the . AEEERMESEZEERMAEREZ
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the BFARE R KB
goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial . AEBEMBREMBEEMEABRRBES
involvement to the degree usually associated with B H R EEMNEREGIE
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; . WS EHBE MR S5t &

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated . X 5 M B8 A F) 7= ] 88 I A AN &=
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and K

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of . R 5 FE 4 S EE A RO R R BE S AT 58
the transaction can be measured reliably. ETE o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment has been
established.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leases below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluation of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the other property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets
will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that
they exceed the balance, if any, on the other property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to accumulated losses.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties is
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of the estimated residual value. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than leasehold
properties over their estimated useful lives using the
reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit

or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
excluded in net gains or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories including
financial assets held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Financial assets at FVTPL (CONT'D)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including debtors, deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is recognised as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade debtors, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss in the period in which the impairment

takes place.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group entities after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Distribution in specie

Non-cash assets distributed to the owners of the
Company are measured at fair value. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amount due to a
shareholder, amount due to immediate holding company,
borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Convertible notes/bonds

Convertible notes/bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes/bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the notes/bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible notes/bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes/bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes/bonds reserve until the embedded
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible notes/bonds reserve will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
notes/bonds reserve will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Convertible notes/bonds (CONT’'D)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes/bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes/bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately or
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period
if the share options is not vested immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits/losses.

Share options granted to advisors

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve), when the counterparties render services,
unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Exchange for an asset

Shares issued in exchange for an asset are measured at
fair value of the asset obtained. The asset obtained is
recognised as an asset of the Group at its fair value.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Research and development expenditure (CONT'D)

The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful life and carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs to completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Impairment (other than goodwill) (CONT'D)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as an
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they are relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment property”, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of Group whose
business objective is to consume substantively all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the above general principles set out in
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leases (CONT'D)

Leasehold land and building (CONT'D)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases,
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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4.

ZE-AF=A=T—HILFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical
conditions and saleability of inventories at the end of the
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods and
consumables primarily based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. As at 31 March 2015, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$75,123,000 (2014:
HK$80,842,000), net of accumulated allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories of HK$84,000 (2014:
HK$133,354,000).
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$17,665,000 (2014: HK$17,665,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$8,111,000
(2014: HK$8,111,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment, in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations and valuations require the use of
judgment and estimates on future operating cash flows
and discount rates adopted. Where the actual cash
flows are different from the original estimate, a material
change in the amount of impairment may arise. As at 31
March 2015, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$3,639,000 (2014: HK$77,787,000), net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$109,000 (2014:
HK$55,814,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 14.
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BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT'D)

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2015, no deferred tax asset was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position in relation to the estimated unused
tax losses of HK$254,262,000 (2014: HK$738,664,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future taxable profits generated are more or
less than expected, a material recognition or reversal of
deferred tax asset may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a recognition
or reversal takes place.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company have a designated team to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(CONT'D)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 March 2014, the Group used market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs were not available, the Group engaged
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group worked
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group first considered and adopted Level 2 inputs where
inputs could be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs were not available,
the Group adopted valuation techniques that include Level
3 inputs. Where there was a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations would
be reported to directors. Any changes in the price per
square metre in reference with recent transactions would
affect the fair value of the investment properties of the
Group. Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 13.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered

by each operating division.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 5. 2EER(E)

The Group is organised into three operating divisions, REBEBH=-(ELEBEX - DBIRE
namely design, manufacture and sale of electronic FERMEVEEE T ERE - RIUOKE®E
products (representing consumer electronic audio and RECM)FJEr - HEREE  MEREUAR
video equipment, karaoke equipment and accessories), BHEE ZENHNAKEREEIHEE
property investment and securities trading. These divisions B2 HEE - RABEANBRAER (KK
are the bases on which the Group reports its segment F36) MEY D IR E QRGN (RHFE37)
information. The Group continues to be organised into the 1% RNEBEEEBMK Ll = EgEDE
above three operating divisions after the deconsolidation Hit - PEERZREEENELT) o

of subsidiaries (see note 36) and the distribution in specie
of shares in a subsidiary (see note 37) and hence there
is no change in the basis of preparation of segment

information.

Segment revenue and results PERAREE

An analysis of the Group’'s revenue, which represents BEAEEIRFREEF2BAAEE
sales of goods, and results by reportable and operating BEm)REESTNAT :

segments is as follows:

Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Property Securities
products  investment trading Consolidated
EfEM
RET - B
REEE MERE BHEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT THET
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-ZE-HF
ZAZT—HLEEE
TURNOVER =E 381,863 - - 381,863
SEGMENT RESULTS ESES (54,192) 16,868 (18) (37,342)
Interest income F B A 58
Unallocated expenses KOBAY (7,014)
Share of profits of an associate {5 B A% N B R 479
Loss arising from the issue of BT MBREREE L
convertible bonds &8 (38,536)
Loss on deconsolidation of HEARELGEARS
subsidiaries g (15,553)
Loss arising from distribution in ENDRMEB R ARG
specie of shares in a subsidiary EEZEE (138,946)
Interest expenses BRI (9,014)
Loss before taxation BRELRIE 1B (245,868)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. DEERE
Segment revenue and results (CONT'D) PHERAREE(E)
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Property Securities
products investment trading Consolidated
BTEM
H/Et - B
KRIHE MERE EHREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET THET
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z-—IF
ZA=t+—-HLEE
TURNOVER = £ 366,953 - - 366,953
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEER (172,063) (8,576) 498 (180,141)
Interest income FEHA 15
Unallocated expenses RAAERRAX (9,256)
Share of profits of an associate JE (R HsE & N B F 651
Interest expenses MERET (10,315)
Loss before taxation BriAlE B (199,046)

96

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the results
from each operating segment without allocation of central
administration costs incurred by head office, share of
results of an associate, interest income, loss arising from
the issue of convertible bonds, loss on deconsolidation
of subsidiaries, loss arising from distribution in specie of
shares in a subsidiary and interest expenses. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 5. DEERE
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEERAE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by BRASETRRKENHCEERBED T
reportable and operating segments is as follows:
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Property Securities
products investment trading Consolidated
EfEM
REt -~ BUE
REE MERE BHEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FTHET
At 31 March 2015 N-Z—-1F
=A=+-—-"H
ASSETS gE
Segment assets DEEE 141,166 76,600 453 218,219
Unallocated corporate assets AP AREE 61,821
Consolidated total assets Lt EE 280,040
LIABILITIES =X
Segment liabilities DEERE 110,822 - - 110,822
Unallocated corporate liabilities KNMRARIEE 71,918
Consolidated total liabilities BRTBEE 182,740
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—MF
=ZA=t+—H
ASSETS &
Segment assets DEEE 211,235 254,825 475 466,535
Unallocated corporate assets KA RAIEE 63,840
Consolidated total assets BEtEEE 530,375
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities DEEE 103,400 - - 103,400
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP ARAE 88,849
Consolidated total liabilities =R 192,249
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 5. DEERE
Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D) PEEEREE(E)
Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent interest RORATIEEXERENEE AT HER
in an associate, available-for-sale investments, deferred AHEEZIRE  REFBEEE - BHEMR
tax assets, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and THERAERRITEFRRSE
cash.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent amount KO ATIBEEEREEN —BRFERIE -
due to a shareholder, amount due to immediate holding FENESEERARGIE - EEAHIE - B#E
company, taxation payable, borrowings, bank overdrafts, RITEY IRREFREEFEEE -

convertible bonds and deferred tax liabilities.

Other segment information HibpEEHR
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Property Securities
products investment trading  Consolidated
EfEm
R#EE MERE E5EE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FET FET FET TiER

Amounts included in the measurement ~ SIADEEES,

of segment results or segment assets: ~ HEAEHEZFUE -

Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_ZE-1F
ZA=t-BLEFE

Additions of property, plant and HENE  BERE

equipment 467 - - 467
Increase in fair value of investment REMEZ NTEEEM

properties - 5,550 - 5,550
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts FRERE /& 2 & 163 - - 163
Decrease in fair value of investments RBIEEEZREY

held for trading ATEERD - - 22 22
Release of prepaid lease payments BNEERERE 90 - - 90
Depreciation of property, plant and 0¥ BERRETE

equipment 3,583 - - 3,583
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving BRERE#EEFE 7 B

inventories 3,677 - - 3,677
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. 2BERE
Other segment information (CONT'D) HthpEER(E)
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Property Securities
products investment trading  Consolidated
EFEM
Fat - Bl
RIEE MERE F5EE X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL BT FET T
Amounts included in the measurement A D EEEXHEEEE
of segment results or segment assets: BZHE
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE_ZE-NE=A=+-—
ALLEE
Additions of property, plant and EENE B RE
equipment 3,350 - - 3,350
Decrease in fair value of investment RENMEZNTEERD
properties - 22,111 - 22,111

Increase in fair value of financial assets T AKAFBEFAER
designated at fair value through profit 74 @&EZ AT EEY

or loss m - - 9 9
Increase in fair value of investments held H#EEEZREZ A TLBE

for trading b - - 479 479
Release of prepaid lease payments BNHEFERR 121 - - 121
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERLERE

equipment 8,375 - - 8,375
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE 2,152 - - 2,152
Bad debt written off BRI 8 1,217 - - 1,217
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving [RE R #ETFE 2 B

inventories 62,570 - - 62,570
Impairment loss recognised in respect of % BERZEEALZ

property, plant and equipment REBE 16,054 - - 16,054
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
Other segment information (CONT'D)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating

decision maker but not included in the measurement of
segment results or segment assets:

THREN(E)
Rit 5 A (E)

EHEBTEIELLERRECRRADEE
B BEEFEZKBANT :

2015 2014
—E-RF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT
Interest in an associate N RNEIR 6,845 6,366
Share of profits of an associate FE AL B & A B A 479 651
Interest expenses bR (9,014) (10,315)

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in North America,
Europe, Hong Kong (place of domicile), Mainland China
(the “PRC") and other countries.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. DEERE
Geographical segments (CONT'D) tEDEE)
The Group's revenue from external customers (based on REBRBINBEP 2WARE P AT
location of customers) and information about its non- E)REHAEFRDEEEN(REEME
current assets by geographical location of the assets are &) 2 FIEWAT

detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current
Year ended 31 March assets (note)
RENBEF
ZWA FERBEE
BE=A=+—HLEE (BfF&E)
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-1F —FT-WF =T-HF T @OF
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FHET FExT FHET
United States of America ESJEs 313,525 267,565 4,385 4,394
Hong Kong &5 20,231 10,581 24,510 268,529
Canada mex 33,038 83,532 - -
Europe B 12,329 5,275 - -
The PRC MR - - 76,600 87,010
Other countries HAnFH K 2,740 - - -

381,863 366,953 105,495 359,933

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments Ma: ERBDEETEREIHLEEZRE
and deferred tax assets. RIEEFRIREE ©
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group

are as follows:

5. SEERGE
EREEEF2EN

BFRAFEMAEERAZEIONU EZE
FRA#EZIT :

2015 2014
“E-RF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET
Customer A’ BEA N/A2 99,021
Customer B! 2 BB 40,446 49,531
Customer C' B2HEC 60,788 N/A2

! Revenue from sales of electronic products.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10%
of the total sales of the Group for the relevant years.

! REHEETFERZIWA -
2 BRARAGEAEERBRFEHERE
AL T HBHB10% °

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HftWA
2015 2014
—E-HEF ZZT—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income mainly includes: HEMWAEEBRE

Dividend income from listed EIRAEFZRBWA
equity securities 4 10
Interest income g s A 58 15
Rental income (note) ik N D) 11,566 14,434
Sale of scrap materials H & RE R - 1,131

Note: Qutgoings of HK$113,000 (2014: HK$899,000) were
incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$11,453,000
(2014: HK$13,535,000).
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EHEkhaEkER
2015 2014
—EBE-EF —_TWF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET
Other gains (losses) comprise: HEabg A (EH8)BIE -
Reversal of allowance (allowance for)  REFEEHEE (BE)
doubtful debts 163 (2,152)
Exchange loss, net FEHEE - F8 (12,029) (5,588)
Bad debt written off AR - (1,217)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BE REE(BE) A
plant and equipment (118) 16,433
(Decrease) increase in fair value of BEESEZ2REZAFEECHD)EM
investments held for trading (22) 479
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB A Gz W - 440
Increase in fair value of financial BEABRATEAEFABRZEREEZR
assets designated at fair value BB N
through profit or loss - 9
Impairment loss recognised in respect  Fh¥1% - BE L& EER 2 BIEEIE
of property, plant and equipment - (16,054)
(12,006) (7,650)
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8.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

8. KRBIAIEGHE

2015 2014
ZE-RF —TNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before taxation has been BRI E 1R 2 st E B Mk -
arrived at after charging:
Allowance for obsolete and PREREHFE 2 BEGIAHEHEREIR)
slow-moving inventories
(included in cost of sales) 3,677 62,570
Auditors’ remuneration ZER BN & 3,562 3,545
Depreciation of property, ME - BEMEETE
plant and equipment 3,583 8,375
Interest expenses on: THEBEZMERE
- borrowings wholly repayable —BRAFANEHRERZEE
within five years 2,786 6,651
— convertible bonds — AR E 5 5,865 -
- note payable —ENEE 363 -
— convertible notes — AR ER® - 3,664
Minimum lease payments under BB AAMELERNI N 2 HERS
operating leases in respect
of rented premises 5,982 6,522
Release of prepaid lease payments TEfT T E IR 90 121
Research and development costs it 35 M F B A AS (BT 5k (a))
(note (a)) 3,149 7,025
Staff costs including directors’ BIRAK  BIEE==8E (MiEb)
remuneration (note (b)) 43,123 57,060

Notes:

The research and development costs included staff costs

Bi3E

of HK$1,370,000 (2014: HK$1,795,000).

The staff costs included retirement benefits scheme

contributions of HK$1,670,000 (2014: HK$2,326,000)
and share-based payments of HK$303,000 (2014:

HK$861,000).
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EE - FETHRAERESH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS &
Directors and chief executive EERFETHAE
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the AEBENSEEREZTHRABZMEF
directors and the chief executive are as follows: FUR -
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZ-_Z—HF=RA=+—HLFE
Salaries
and other  Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
ek
Hijg 8 BIRER
ik EERF BE L3 MemaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TER TER
Executive directors: BTES !
Wang Jing (note a) T & (Mzta) - - - -
Wang Xing Qiao (note a) TESF(MFa) - - - -
Chen Wan Jin (note a) BRES (MEa) - - - -
Zhao Shuang (note a) (i zTa) - - - -
Lau Sak Hong, Philip (note b) AR - 2,076 - 2,076
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony (note b) FA (KI5Eb) - 210 10 220
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (note b) 21852 (M5Tb) - 210 10 220
Lau Chu Lan, Carol (note b) 2R (M 3Eb) - 309 - 309
Non-executive director: FHITEE
Li Jun (note a) FE(Mffzta) - - - -
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter (note b) FEiHE (K5D) - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors:
Yang Xin Hua (note a) B E(Ma) - 209 - 209
Wang Ping (note a) T (fizEa) - 209 - 209
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny (note a) AR (HTa) - 209 - 209
Chan Chak Chung (note b) BROZM (FisEb) - - - -
Chuck Winston Calptor (note b) FEE(KfEb) - - - -
Tang Yee Man (note a) HER(MEa) - - - -
- 3,432 20 3,452
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EBEE - FETHRAERESM

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’'D) (&)
Directors and chief executive (CONT'D) EERIFETBRAR(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE—_Z-—NMF=A=+—RHLFE
Salaries
and other Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments
ek
Hfth 52 59 RIRER
e EERH AR AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT FHEIL FHEL
Executive directors: HiTES:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip ElEo)s - 3,824 - 3,824
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 285K - 360 15 375
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 28R - 286 13 299
Lau Chu Lan, Carol BRE - 444 15 459
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter #IAH 50 - - 50
Independent non-executive BYFHTES:
directors:
Chan Chak Chung PRZ 50 - - 50
Chuck Winston Calptor 258 50 - - 50
Tang Yee Man (note c) BER (T 30 - - 30
Ho Hau Chong, Norman (note d) MEH(FHEEd) 20 - - 20
200 4,914 43 5,157
Notes: MEE -
(a) These directors were appointed on 21 July 2014. (a) ZEEEN_TNELA-T—HEZF -
(b) These directors resigned on 21 July 2014. (b) FEEEN-_E-NE+ A+ —HET -
(c) The director was appointed on 26 August 2013. () ZEEN_T-—=F/\AZT BEZE-
(d) The director resigned on 26 August 2013. (d) ZEEFR_Z-=F/\AZ+RARE -
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EE - FETHRAERESH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) ®(E)
Directors and chief executive (CONT'D) ESRTETBRAEE)
No performance related incentive payments were paid to MERZMEFTERARBES I NEMNE
the directors of the Company for both years. WAL
Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip was the chief executive of the BE—_Z-—MFE=-A=+—HIEEREZE
Company during the year ended 31 March 2014 and BHERE - B2IBEEENRARRZERT
up to the date of his resignation. Mr. Wang Xing Qiao BAE - TEBHEERZE—WMFELAZ+
was appointed as the chief executive of the Company —HEZAERARRTEZTHAER - BER
on 21 July 2014. Their emoluments disclosed above IXREZMeBEREEREEITHAR
included those for services rendered by them as the chief RERBAEEE -
executive.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, two directors REBEE_ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE"
waived their emoluments of HK$164,000 (2015: nil). MAEENEMNS164,0008 L(=ZF—5
FmE) e
Employees 3=
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included REEBRERERFHZALRE=4(ZZF
three (2014: two) directors, details of whose remuneration —OF : MB)EE FEESHE 2F18
are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two BERENEE HAMZ(ZZT—MNEF : =
(2014: three) highest paid employees are as follows: ZIERETHEEZMeMT -
2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short term FekEMEHESREN
employee benefits 603 1,456
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE R B
contributions 29 30
632 1,486
Emoluments of these employees were within the following HEREMES 2 2HBEWT ¢
bands:
Number of employees
EBEAH
2015 2014
—E-RF —_T-WF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000%8 7T 2 3
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10. TAXATION 10. I\
2015 2014
—E-HF ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The charge (credit) comprises: X (ER)BIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH
Current year RNEE - 34
Underprovision in prior years BITHREBEETE - 52
- 86
Taxation in other jurisdictions Efh R R 218
Current year KEEF 570 554
Overprovision in prior years BT HAR R B - (712)
570 (158)
Deferred taxation (note 31) EERTE (MEE31) 693 (9,610)
1,263 (9,682)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: BEBRISBIAREFE 2 (5 B R T s IR
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No #E16.5% (ZZF—MHF : 16.5% )5t E - B
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the RASERBEE-_T—HF=-A=+—HIt
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit FEERBUERELEXMERT N - B
for the year ended 31 March 2015. ERYBmERBBFERAIREE -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the RIBEPBECEMSRETEEMRGRE]D
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, ROZERGBTEABHEEN - PRMBARZ
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. HER25% °
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the REMBERERE A 2 BRI IR S AR RE
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. R RITHEE -
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10.

TAXATION (CONT'D) 10. BLE(AE)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before REZRENHEFZLEEERRAMEEKEE
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss KZBRBAIEEREERNT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF T — N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Loss before taxation MR AT E R (245,868) (199,046)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax IR AMFTEHIER16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—MF : 16.5%)TE2HIEE R (40,568) (32,843)
Tax effect of share of results of an B ERAREE IR E
associate (79) (107)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ER 2 FHEFE
for taxation purposes 34,404 11,100
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBN R 2 HBTE
taxation purposes (925) (463)
Effect of different tax rates of REMENERELE ZHNB AR TRME
subsidiaries operating in other TE
jurisdictions 829 (3,832)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERFHIBEIE 2 ML 10,918 23,720
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AN ARRZREBEIMEFE
previously not recognised (4,140) (264)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBERE - (660)
Recognition of tax losses previously not &R &R ARIER 2 BEEE
recognised - (6,324)
Recognition of other deductible HREAARERZ Bl 0T =5
temporary differences previously not
recognised - (298)
Others EAb 824 289
Taxation for the year KEZHIE 1,263 (9,682)
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Hr —F
BHE_T

11.

12.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

DIVIDENDS 11. BB
2015 2014
—E-RF —_TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution AEBHERBOIMZIEE :
during the year:
Special dividends by way of distribution #FiBE WD IR B R RRKRMND Z RIS
in specie of shares in a subsidiary 124,062 -

On 26 June 2014, the Company made a distribution in
specie of shares in a subsidiary, SIH Limited (“SIH"), to
the shareholders of the Company, 2,033,808,485 shares
in SIH were distributed to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company
on the same date. Details of the assets and liabilities
distributed are set out in note 37.

Other than the special dividends, the directors of the
Company have determined that no dividends will be paid
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil).

ZE-—WFEARAZF B AQF AKX
FAIREEYH KK B R FSIH Limited
([SIH]) Z &1 > 2,033,808,485%SIHAZ {5
DIERTRERBRBINARFIRE A 2K o
ENREERBEZFBHINMEIT -

/A

BE-_Z—RE=-A=T—HILEE K&
BIDIRAN - NRA T EEH R IRER S
TEYF &) o

LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is BREAREEEBRENTSIETE
based on the following data:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-WF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the BRI EEBREAREEEE .
Company for the purpose of basic KARHEA AEILEIE
and diluted loss per share (246,934) (193,036)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (CONT'D) 12. SREBR(E)
Number of shares
gl -4
2015 2014
—F-HF —F-mF
Weighted average number of shares A:tEERERNEEEIE Y
for the purpose of basic and i HRR G E A
diluted loss per share 2,085,085,753 1,747,814,332
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the calculation of BHE-_Z—AF=A=1+—RHLEFE  #&
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of AR BT 18 W Y R 2 0 M S A AN N J i R
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible e RRES  BAE@RTERERER
bonds as it would result in a decrease in the loss per EiEm A o
share.
For the year ended 31 March 2014, the calculation of BEZZ—MOF=A=1+—HLFE &
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the BRREEEIER R BT ARITEZ
outstanding share options as it would result in a decrease BEhkiE BRAEHETEHEREREER
in the loss per share and the exercise prices of those L BERFEREZTEESRRD ZFH
share options are higher than the average market price miE o
for shares.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. BREWE

2015 2014
—E-RF —_TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Fair value of investment properties: WEWMEZ AFER :
At beginning of the year F1) 254,825 276,936
Increase (decrease) in fair value NEEEEMORD) 5,550 (22,1171)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries Bii 8 R Al b 4R A ABR (FT3E36)
(note 36) (27,075) -
Distribution in specie of shares EYoIRK B ARG (MFE37)
in a subsidiary (note 37) (233,300) -
At end of the year F R - 254,825
The carrying amount of investment REVMERAERBELRUATIENEE 2
properties comprises properties Tz E
situated on land held under:
Land in Hong Kong: REB 2 THb -
Long leases REATE A - 228,400
Land outside Hong Kong: RBEBZIN T
Long leases REATEAY - 26,425
- 254,825

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
were measured using the fair value model and were

classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties had
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected of the Group. The

valuations were arrived at by reference to recent market By o

prices for similar properties in similar locations and

conditions.
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13.

and best use of the properties was their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties were determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements were categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

13.
RiGFMEZR

REME(E)
NFEE SRR &S

MERERZEAEEMAR

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements was observable.

Investment properties held by

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERTREERAZE

TREHREEDER
EAMERT R ABE) 2ER

FEEEE A
A K2

REATFEEFEZBARBNTEREE
MEAFEEAEIEBARTEESR
(B—E=BI2EH -

Significant unobservable input(s) Sensitivity

EXTTERAANE qEE

the Group in the consolidated Fair value
statement of financial position hierarchy
FEENGRUBHRERELRENE  ATEESA
At 31 March 2014

KZB-BE=A=1-R

Industrial property in Hong Kong Level 3
iRE# 2 T$M% =
Commercial property in the PRC Level 3
RhEZAENE EE
Residential property in the PRC Level 3
frRhE e =4

Direct comparison method
with price per square feet

RETHRZBRZERLSE

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BETAR BRZERLRE

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BETHR BRZERLRE

Price per square feet using market direct
comparable and taking into account of location
and other individual factors, such as road,
frontage, size of property etc., which is ranged
from HK$3,969 to HK$4,191 per square feet.

FRMBERTELEZETARER  URNER
EERNRR mER - BERR NEK0E
{ELRE - BTFRNTI 99T E4 1918 «

Price per square metre using market direct
comparable and taking into account of location
and other individual factors, such as road,
frontage, size of property etc., which is ranged

from RMB11,500 to RMB13,100 per square metre.

RRMSERTEL B ETAAER  LRAMER
EfbERIRZ - mER  BEAR DERNE
[ELBE - THANTAREN S00TE
ARB13.1007 *

Price per square metre using market direct
comparable and taking into account of location
and other individual factors, such as road,
frontage, size of property etc., which is ranged
from RMB8,991 to RMBY,388 per square metre.

RATSERVEN BT IRER  LANLER
ERERIRZ  mER  BEMR NRNE
{EHERE - BTARNTARYKS 9ITE
AR#9,3887 ¢

A significant increase in the price per square
feet used would result in significant increase
in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

SEARE BN EREEHRENE,
RPREHE2EXER RO -

Asignificant increase in the price per square
metre used would result in significant
increase in the fair value measurement of
the investment property, and vice versa.

ETIRER ENERGERRENRL
AYERFEZEAER RN

Asignificant increase in the price per square
metre used would result in significant
increase in the fair value measurement of
the investment property, and vice versa.

EYIRERZBAEREHRENRL
AYBEAEZENER  RZIH -
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D) 13. REWYHXE(EZ

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years.

The resulting increase in fair value of the investment
properties of HK$5,550,000 for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: decrease in fair value of HK$22,111,000) has
been recognised in profit or loss.

MEFENLBEARBEE =R -

BHE-_Z-—AFE=A=1+—BIEE KRE
Y% 2 N F{E{E# 5,550,000 0 ( =
—MmEF - RFEMBERKD22,111,00087T)E
RiEm P ER -

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y%  BERKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold  Computer fixtures and Motor  Plant and
properties equipment equipment  vehicles machinery Total
B £E
BENE SRk R#EE RE HEREE h
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T FET TR THET T
COST OR VALUATION RAESIEE
At 1 April 2013 W-E-=%WA—H 78,459 26,547 101,789 9,334 518,768 734,897
Additions NE 400 7 824 - 2,19 3,350
Disposals HE - - (116) (370)  (61,314) (61,800
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-A 78,859 26,554 102,497 8,964 459,573 676,447
Additions RE - 21 - - 446 467
Disposals HE - - - - (9,744) (9,744)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 36) HEARRIEANE
(W3536) (61,068)  (14,221)  (77,849)  (5325) (312,198)  (470,661)
Distribution in specie of shares ENHRMBARRN
in a subsidiary (note 37) (P3E37) (17,791)  (10,158)  (21,182) (3,639) (118,952)  (171,722)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-R%=A=1+-H - 2,196 3,466 - 19,125 24,787
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERFE
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=F@A-A 14,334 23,114 94,238 8,022 495,941 635,649
Provided for the year REERE 1,110 970 1,462 245 4,588 8,375
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss ~ RERBRZHEFE - - 590 - 15,464 16,054
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (81) (304)  (61,033)  (61,418)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=ZR=1—-H 15,444 24,084 96,209 7,963 454,960 598,660
Provided for the year KEEERE 944 297 1,067 88 1,187 3,583
Eliminated on disposals HER M - - - - (9,314) (9,314)
Eliminated on deconsolidation WEARRLGEAEZ
of subsidiaries (note 36) g (FiEE36) (10,515) (12,945  (74,413)  (5,077) (311,149)  (414,099)
Eliminated on distribution in specie ENDRNBA ARG
of shares in a subsidiary (note 37) 8 (M 3E37) (5,873) (9,273)  (20,252) (2,974)  (119,310)  (157,682)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-HE=f=1—H - 2,163 2,611 - 16,374 21,148
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2015 R-E-R%=A=1+-H - 33 855 - 2,751 3,639
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-AH 63,415 2,470 6,288 1,001 4,613 71,787

114 Shihua Development Company Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong
Kong, which included prepaid lease payments, was
depreciated over forty years on a straight-line basis and
after taking into account of the estimated residual value.
The cost of buildings situated on leasehold land outside
Hong Kong was amortised over a period of fifty years
or, where shorter, the remaining term of the leases on
a straight-line basis and after taking into account of the

estimated residual value.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
items of property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold properties, over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method at the following rates

per annum:

Computer equipment 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25%
Motor vehicles 20 - 25%
Plant and machinery 15 - 30%

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the directors
conducted a review of the Group’s furniture, fixtures
and equipment and plant and machinery and identified a
number of physically damaged and technical obsolescent
assets. Accordingly, certain furniture, fixtures and
equipment and plant and machinery used in the Group's
electronic products segment with carrying amount of
HK$16,054,000 were considered to be fully impaired and
has been recognised in profit or loss (2015: nil).

14.

M- BERRE(E)

BREEMNEERRZERHENEZRAE
S ER A RSEERNERELER
AFFENE - URBENNIMBR ZEE
T2 BT 2 AR RAAF RIS EER A
EREAERSOFHN(MBREFH)HOR
HREMGEEE -

Hibx BMELRERB(HEMER
SN ThR AR A A MRS SRR RO E
FEAMIBEERAR - PARFRNT :

BIERE 25%

R KB RRE 10 - 25%
B 20 - 25%
T 7 I 28 15 - 30%

HE-_ZT-—NF=A=+—HILFE EF
BRARERZEM  KERRBEAREE K
Hees - WERZIAYEBRELREMER ZE
E-Rlt AEEEFEROBEAERZE
TRM - BB RBREARRE k282 RE
{8 7316,054,000/8 7T » W18 (F B BURE &
ERNEEARR(—F—0F : §) -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ -BERRKEE)

(CONT'D)

The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown
above comprises properties situated on land held under:

THEEMERRUNATIEOEEZL
wzWE - HEEER

2015 2014
—E-AF —TOF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Long leases in Hong Kong EEBURBHENEE - 11,952
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong FE&FBAIMEE AP BRBLOEE - 51,463
- 63,415

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the valuation of
certain of the Group’'s leasehold properties was carried
out by a firm of independent professional valuers in 1991
on an open market value for existing use basis. The Group
has adopted the transitional relief provided by paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” from
the requirement to make revaluation on a regular basis
of certain of the Group’s leasehold properties and,
accordingly, no further revaluation of leasehold properties
would be carried out. Had these leasehold properties
with a carrying amount of HK$7,472,000 been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, the carrying value of these leasehold
properties at 31 March 2014 would have been stated at
HK$7,106,000 (2015: nil).
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

16.

15. ANHEERE

AEBEZENHEERRRE

2015 2014
“EB-EF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Leasehold land held under medium EEBRINAFR BT L
term leases outside Hong Kong BECHEE T - 3,411
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENLTA
Current asset MBEE - 121
Non-current asset ETBEE - 3,290
- 3,411
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. EmBRRAE
HK$'000
FAT
CosT RAE
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—-=FMmMHA—H 1,732
Amount written off s (1,732)
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—HE_Z—RAF=A=+—H -
AMORTISATION s
At 1 April 2013 R-T—=4mA—H 1,732
Amount written off MiEe R (1,732)
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 RZT—HWOF=A=+—HBRZE—AF=A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—RAEK=ZFT-—HNE=ZA=+—H

Product development costs were amortised over a period

of five years on a straight-line basis.

EmABERANABEN IF AN -
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BHE_T

17.

18.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

GOODWILL 17. &BHE

HK$'000

FHET

COST BRAE
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—-—=FMmMHA—H 28,053
Written off during the year N S B (2,277)
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—HE-_ZE—HRF=A=+—H 25,776
IMPAIRMENT VERE]
At 1 April 2013 R-ZT—=Z4mMA—H 10,388
Written off during the year PN O § (2,277)
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—BAk-_Z—FHAF=ZA=+—H 8,111
CARRYING VALUE BRTE{E
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 R-E—FE=A=+—Bk-_Z—NWE=A=+—H 17,665

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 18.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill of
carrying value amounting to HK$17,665,000 (2014:
HK$17,665,000) as set out in note 17 has been allocated
to a cash-generating unit (“CGU") in the design,
manufacture and sale of electronic products segment
operating in the United States of America.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the budgeted
period. The management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.
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EEZBEANR

RBENAMES M7 REEEA
17,665,000/ 7T (—F —F04 : 17,665,000
B2 EEBWIRE —EReEELEN
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HERHEBFEREBZHE -
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18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18. BE 2 HERE(Z)

(CONT’D)

During the year, the Group performed impairment review RAFE  REEBRBEEEEBH AZAK
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts of the CGU IFERFUEREMELEZRSELEEN
derived from the most recent financial budget for the Z2HREREEINEMEERE  ARZK0%
next five years approved by the management and cash (ZZ—UF : 0%)EREEERFR B
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using enE -  BR:tEBARSREZBIEXRA
0% (2014: 0%) growth rate. The rate used to discount 10% (ZZF—WF : 10%) - REE T —
the forecast cash flows is 10% (2014: 10%). During the AFZA=Z1+—HIEFE BHRBEELEE
year ended 31 March 2015, as the recoverable amount fLzrlEeHEBBReELBEM KA
of the CGU exceeds the carrying value of the CGU, no B MAERRBEEBE -

impairment loss is recognised.

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REE&E QT 2RSS
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET
Cost of investments in REFERNRZIEKA - JEE™
an associate, unlisted 6,510 6,510
Share of post-acquisition results, JEMRUIE R 248 - MR E WA
net of dividend received 335 (144)
6,845 6,366
Details of the Group's associate are as follows: REBEZBERNTFBOT -
Form of Place of Nominal value Attributable
business registration/ of registered equity interest
Name of associate structure operations capital to the Group Principal activities
- UNGES ERERPA M/ EEnE ZMEAEE  AEEEGRAEE TEXE
2015 2014

Z2-1f —Z-MF

Interforce Limited Limited liability  Hong Kong HK$500,000 30% 30% Trading in electronic
("Interforce”) company products

EABRAF EREART  BE 500,000%7T 30% 30% BEEFEM
(TER)

“E-REFHR BEBRRERATY 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

P =
BHE_T

19.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

The associate is indirectly held by the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiary.

Included in the cost of investments in an associate is
goodwill of HK$3,779,000 (2014: HK$3,779,000) arising
on acquisition of an associate in prior year.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s

associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the associate’s management accounts prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The Group’s associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

=
S

BENT 2 EH(E)

BERRHARAERE2EMBARME
SR
E/\ fERBZIRERAE %Lﬁifﬂﬁzﬁ% it

BNRPTEA 223,779,000 T( =
—Pg4 : 3,779,000/ 7T) °

FEBEBEQAT M BENBE

BREASEBERRZHBENBIIMT
UTHBERREE 2R RIEF LY R
SHEANREROBENREIERE Z5A -

RZEHEAMBRE  NEBZBE QAT
RMESRENER -

Interforce B
2015 2014
—Z-HF ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Current assets REEE 15,107 19,714
Non-current assets IEmEEE 1,737 1,800
Current liabilities mEEE (6,624) (12,893)
Revenue A 135,838 148,709

Profit and total comprehensive REE 55 F K

income for the year MmN SR 1,596 2,170
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT’'D) 19. REENR2ER(E)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial N EHBERBEERRGEMBERREER
information to the carrying amount of the interest in BB E A RER REENYRAT ¢
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2015 2014
“E-FF Z—TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net assets of Interforce BEEANELEREESE
attributable to owners 10,220 8,621
Proportion of the Group's AEBREN 2HAEEZG DL
ownership interest in Interforce 30% 30%
Goodwill [EES 3,779 3,779
Carrying amount of the AEERBER 2 #m2 REE
Group’s interest in Interforce 6,845 6,366

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AEHHEZKRE
2015 2014
—E-AF _—T-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAET
Equity securities N
Unlisted shares, at cost TR - AR - 26,690
Less: Impairment losses recognised A B ERBEERE - (17,290)
- 9,400
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDNTA
Non-current asset ERBEE - 9,400
The above unlisted investments represented investments FiigE EMBRE RN EBFMALALATE
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities BOIZIELTRAFSKRE - HREEBEAF
incorporated in Hong Kong. They were measured at cost BEMAFHEEXN  KRAAEERAREE
less impairment loss at the end of the reporting period FHEAEQFERE ﬁt%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates was FIARIRE AR BB B2 -

so significant that the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that their fair values could not be measured
reliably.
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2015 2014
—E-RF —_TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials B4 = 7,344
Work in progress 8@ - 1,279
Finished goods 2R M 75,123 72,219
75,123 80,842
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in RAFE  RixaBakAt2ERER
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WRAZ M ZFEKAZE322,811,000/ 7T
comprehensive income during the year amounted to (ZZ—/% : 408,857,000/ 7T) °
HK$322,811,000 (2014: HK$408,857,000).
22. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22. BWRE - BERANFE
PREPAYMENTS
2015 2014
“EB-RFE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Trade debtors EUE 5 BR1E 30,562 18,050
Deposits with securities brokers BARERL 2 RE 47 50
Advances to suppliers S FHER - 2,327
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT SR I8 K2 L B UK IE 14,130 11,103
44,739 31,530
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TMEHRENDOTE
Current assets mENE E 43,993 31,530
Non-current assets EMENEE 746 -
44,739 31,530
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22. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22.

PREPAYMENTS (CONT'D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective recognition dates, is as follows:

FEWARIE » RER AN RIEA
(#&)

R MR R (RS & R B AR ) R
% #9271 2 U 55 PR O (30 B R B B
B) 2 BRAFWT :

2015 2014
=F-1% —TOF
HK$'000  HK$'000

FHExT FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 11,938 10,740
31 - 60 days 31260H 6,486 311
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,633 2,093
Over 90 days HBiB90H 6,505 4,906
30,562 18,050

The Group allows an average credit period ranging
from 30 days to 90 days to its trade customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customer and define appropriate credit limits.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
and other receivables and considers the trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be

of a good quality.

Included in the Group’'s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$12,325,000 (2014:
HK$7,632,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The directors of the Company determined that these
receivables are either due from customers of good credit
quality with no history of default or covered by credit
insurance. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

AEBHKRTHEZGRPZEHEEHNT
300 E90H - REMNEMIAEFA - B2
BN EEEEP 2 EEEERAIVE
EZEERE EEERYERZIREM
EMFHIBBZEEER - WARRKRBE AR
BEZEZREMERFEZEZRI -

FEEEVESEBEEEEEHAER
12,325,000 7t ( = Z — M4 : 7,632,000
BT 2 WA - ARAKRER®REBHC
B EAKEYRFHBEBERE - K
NRAEEEETHSERYFARBREREER
RIFABBRLHZEP ZRARZEER
RIRIE - NEBYWES U FHERTEERNE
o e
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22. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONT'D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

FEUWERIE ~ e R AT RIE
(%&)

B EIE R R E 2 KR 5T 2 AT
mF :

2015 2014
—E-AF —TOF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET
Overdue 31 — 60 days wWHI31E60H 4,440 1,384
Overdue 61 — 90 days #HI61290H 1,459 2,436
Overdue over 90 days #HAHE B 90 A 6,426 3,812
12,325 7,632

Based on the experience of the management and
repayment record of the customers, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired and not associated
with litigations are generally recoverable.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

REEEE2RBRLEP ZENRE 28
HERBERERESHAZE S EUFIA—
AT Y o

RIEREZE
2015 2014
—E-RF Z—ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET
At beginning of the year F 1) 36,818 35,441
(Reversal of) impairment losses R ERTE v B IR EEE (BE)
recognised on debtors (163) 2,152
Amount written off Mg R (319) (775)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries B A Bl IEdR A AR (25,161) -
Distribution in specie of =N =PNS )
shares in a subsidiary (1,942) -
At end of the year F R 9,233 36,818

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade debtors with an aggregated
balance of HK$9,233,000 (2014: HK$34,759,000) which
have either been placed under liquidation or in financial
difficulties.
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22. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22. EWERIE - BERFEMNRE
PREPAYMENTS (CONT’D) (4&)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEEH(E)
(CONT'D)
As at 31 March 2014, the management had withdrawn RZE—WMF=ZRA=+—H ' EBEER
a litigation against a trade debtor in prior year as they T FEREE—R2ESEBAZFA
consider that the legal and professional expenses involved THREERREAFLALRZEER
would be high, and the related debtor balance of HEBRHESRe  mMABEEKEELS
HK$2,059,000 was fully impaired in prior year (2015: nil). 2,059,000 (= F—HF : T)EB/\J:—
FEEERE -
23. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 23. HKIEEEZRE
2015 2014
“E-RE — M
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Listed securities EWEH
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE T2 RAE S 171 167
Equity securities listed outside REBFIN L2 RARE
Hong Kong 282 308
453 475
24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 24. EEMBITER R BRITEER
BALANCES AND CASH/BANK Be RITEX
OVERDRAFTS
Pledged bank deposits BHEABTER

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. As at 31 March 2014, deposits amounting to
HK$1,077,000 had been pledged to secure short term
banking facilities and were therefore classified as current
assets (2015: nil).

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits which carry interest at an average rate
of 0.01% (2014: 0.01%) per annum.

BEPRITERIEMRITER 2 FH - U#E
RETAEBE ZRITHE - RZT—HNF=
A=+—8 " ' £%A1,077,000%8 T2 FK
ETHEAUEREHARITRE BEHER
RBEE(ZT—RF  |E) o

RITEEFRRE

RITHEEFEMREREAEEMFRE - MU
RRFEHEFNER)OIESE(ZE—MF :
0.012) ZRITTFA °
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BHE_T

24.

25.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (CONT'D)

Bank overdrafts

As at 31 March 2014, bank overdrafts carried interest at
market rate of 5.90% per annum (2015: nil).

CHEBEITER BITEER
Be BITEX(E)

RITEX
R-ZE-—OF=A=+—H  {ITEXED
BENERS QVEFHE(ZE—HF - 8) -

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 25. ERRERETER
2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade creditors JERTE SRR 22,407 32,954
Notes payable and accrued interest BN =1 KBTI B 8,943 -
Royalty and withholding tax payable JET B B R FANT 944 3,178
Other creditors and accrued expenses — EHth B BRIE R EFHA X 78,528 67,268
110,822 103,400

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEREODTA

Current liabilities EAaE 90,741 103,400
Non-current liabilities EmBBEE 20,081 -
110,822 103,400

Note payable with the principal amount of US$1,100,000
(equivalent to HK$8,580,000) is unsecured and carries
interest at 6% per annum (2014: nil). This note shall
be payable in consecutive equal quarterly instalments
of principal and interest in the amount of US$150,000
(equivalent to HK$1,170,000) up to 2017. At 31 March
2015, HK$3,873,000 and HK$5,070,000 are classified as
current and non-current liabilities, respectively.

Included in other creditors is an amount of
HK$15,011,000 which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable upon expiry of revolving credit facility granted
to a subsidiary of the Company in 2017 (2014: nil).
Accordingly, the amount is classified as a non-current
liability.
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25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 25. ENRERESER(Z

(CONT’D)
The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on RS PEREEEARH2ICENE SR
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as B R :
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF Z—ZZT—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0&230H 8,451 8,900
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,990 2,031
61 - 90 days 61290H 2,554 139
Over 90 days HB3B90H 9,412 21,884
22,407 32,954
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 REERZ2FHEEHRAAR -
days.
26. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 26. BNKRERMIE
The amount due to a shareholder, Mr. Wang Xing ERNRREESEE(ZT—WF : 2R
Qiao (2014: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip), is interest-free, EEIREBAES - ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&?ﬁgﬂﬂaﬁ
unsecured and repayable on demand. Mr. Wang Xing FTESEE(ZZE—NHE: JPELEE)DR
Qiao (2014: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip) is also a director RRABIZEEREZITHAE °
and chief executive of the Company.
27. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE 27. ENEEEZERATZARIE
HOLDING COMPANY
The amount is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on ZEEAERE « EIEENIEEREE -
demand.
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28. BORROWINGS

28.

B8
2015 2014
—E-RF —_TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trust receipts and import loans EREREQDER - 17,655
Short term bank loans RERITER - 51,150
- 68,805

The Group’s borrowings were all secured by certain assets
as disclosed in note 41.

During the year end 31 March 2014, the Group's
borrowings were floating-rate borrowings, which were
mainly linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR"), and bore interest at a range from 3.8% to 5.9%
per annum (2015: nil). Interest was repriced every month.

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 15 June 2012, the Company issued 1.5% coupon
convertible notes (the “Notes”) at a principal amount
of HK$36,300,000 maturing on 15 December 2013
to Mr. Lau Shek Yuen. Mr. Lau Shek Yuen is a former
shareholder of the Company and a brother of all former
executive directors of the Company. The Notes were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the Company
agreed to guarantee payment of all sums payable in
relation to the Notes. Interest of 1.5% were paid annually
up until the settlement date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONT’'D)

The principal terms of the Notes were as follows:

(a) The Notes were convertible, at the option of
the note holder, into ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.104 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments, at any time on or after 15 June
2012 up to and including the date which is 3
days prior to the maturity date. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
the outstanding Notes would be redeemed by the
Company at 100% of its principal amount on the
maturity date.

(b) At any time while the Notes were outstanding
and had not been converted, the Company might
redeem all of the principal of the Notes or any
part at a redemption price equal to the applicable
early redemption amount predetermined in the
convertible note agreement.

At initial recognition, the Notes were split into an equity
component of HK$5,591,000 and a liability component of
HK$30,709,000. The liability component was determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at an effective interest rate of 11.8%
per annum, being the average yield of similar financial
instruments with similar credit rating and structure but
without the call conversion option or the early redemption
option, which incorporated appropriate adjustments to
reflect possible impact of country factors, firm specific
risk and liquidity risk.

As the Company’s early redemption options were
considered as closely related to the host contracts, the
fair values of these options, which were determined using
Trinomial Tree Method at initial recognition, had not been
separated from the host contracts, but included in the
carrying amount of the liability component.

29. TERREE(E)

BB TREREINWT

(a) ERAEREBEFREAZEE R
ZE—ZFRNATHBRZEESR
NEBA=R(2IEZA)EMAEE
BEHRRESRRKKH0.104 T H# R
ABEREEIIBTZARNA L BR
(ATETRBERAE) - RIFEEXAE
faE - EMsiEE R mARE
EEBEKBAARRIBAEKRAER
SR 2100%EE -

(b)y RRBEHABEDEILEE®RZ E0
B A - A A B AR AR R R
BEAEE CERER(ERERR
FEESR)BRREZABHEM
BAAREE

RUTHRARK ZEBRFALSEZNS
5,591,000/ 7T & & & & ©30,709,0007%
Lo BEBHTDIRIBIZERFFE11.8%
(BPEBEOEE TR R BB B & RE
EnEEREEEEE  BUeRT ALY
FHEE - HEFFARE AR URBER
Hx - AaARER KRB IERR 2 7] %
L)MRAEFTRKBEeREZREAMET °

HRARRZIRFEOEERENA/ETA
HTUIAAR - RS HRRBR=TTHERE
EXREERRZATEELRETEND
B - MEFHARER D ZAREE ©
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONT'D)

On 6 December 2013, all conversion rights had been
exercised and 349,038,461 conversion shares are allotted

and issued.

The movement of the liability component of the Notes for

the current and prior years is set out below:

29.

TRERE(E)
R-B—=F+=AXA  HAKBECHE
1718 - H349,038,461BR# AR AR (7 1 AL 25 &
%7 -

AERREE—FEZEZBREERND 2EHH
ST

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2013 W-ZE—=¢mA—AR 33,453

Imputed interest expense for the year HFRHENEFX 3,664

Coupon interest paid ENEER (817)
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEBRREITRG

of the Notes (36,300)

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—HE_Z—HF=A=1+—H -

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 30 July 2014, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) at a principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 maturing on 30 July 2017 to the
immediate holding company of the Company. The Bonds
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the Company
agrees to guarantee payment of all sums payable in
relation to the Bonds. Interest of 3% per annum will be
paid half-annually up until the settlement date.

The Bonds are convertible, at the option of the bond
holder, into ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.172 per share,
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time on or
after 30 July 2014 up to and including the maturity date.
Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the outstanding Bonds will be redeemed by the
Company at 100% of its principal amount on the maturity
date.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D) 30. ARRMES(E)
At initial recognition, the Bonds are split into an equity RERERE - EFH 5 561,480, OOO/%
component of HK$61,480,000 and a liability component TLZ e #8 &52,056,0008 T2 BES
of HK$52,056,000. The liability component is determined Do BEHRDIRBEEERFNE16.21%
based on the present value of the estimated future cash (AEBUEETRAREBELEWNERE
flows discounted at an effective interest rate of 16.21% EngsEUeRTIAZ FHKEE - BB
per annum, being the average yield of similar financial FAEEABARMBEREZ - A7 AEE
instruments with similar credit rating and structure but B KRom B RS 2 TTRE S22 ) BRIR (R ET R K
without the call conversion option, which incorporated RemnEsREMEBTE °

appropriate adjustments to reflect possible impact of
country factors, firm specific risk and liquidity risk.

The equity component is presented as convertible bonds RZZ2E—REF=A=+—08 #Exf5ER
reserve in equity, whereas the liability component is MR ESFEERNER Wiﬁ'l maEHd»
classified under non-current liabilities at 31 March 2015. AlpfEzERBEMEET -

The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for RAFEEHFZBELD 2EHFIIWAT

the current year is set out below:

HK$'000
FHET
Liability component at date of issue RETHBHZEBERD 52,056
Transaction costs attributable to BEEzBELDEHERIEAR
the liability component of the Bonds (97)
51,959
Imputed interest expense for the year FREENEFHX 5,865
Coupon interest paid ENEER (949)
At 31 March 2015 WZE—hAF=A=+—H 56,875
None of the Bonds has been converted into ordinary HEZ-RAF=ZA=T—HILFE  #HE
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 March BEHFERABANG LB -
2015.
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEBIE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets AEERBAFEERREIEZRERIE(E
recognised and movements thereon during the current B)EEREZEHMOT

and prior years:

Accelerated Revaluation

tax Tax of
depreciation losses  properties Others Total
MEFERE  BEBE  ERENE Hit B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL

(Note)
(F&E)
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H 299 11,200 (7,461) 308 4,346
Credit to profit or loss AR 1,366 5,260 2,947 37 9,610
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=1+—H 1,665 16,460 (4,514) 345 13,956
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (Bt AEE (724) - - 31 (693)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries EARRILRE AR(MEE36)
(note 36) 19 (19) 4,514 - 4,514
Distribution in specie of shares B2 RH B ARG (HF37)
in a subsidiary (note 37) 730 (83) - (166) 481
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RFE=A=1+—H 1,690 16,358 - 210 18,258
Note: Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from Wi : HMEEZEFEZARERGMNMEEZ
unrealised profits on inventories. EREER o
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31.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

31.

LB E (4

NG EMBRARKEIME - 5 TELT
RBEERRBCOYHE - REMBRERR
IR BER DT -

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—NOF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Deferred tax assets FLERIEE E 18,258 18,951
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERBEE - (4,995)
18,258 13,956

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$323,682,000 (2014: HK$819,293,000)
and the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset
in respect of tax losses of HK$254,262,000 (2014:
HK$738,664,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unused tax losses are
losses of HK$114,950,000 (2014: HK$117,000,000) that
will expire in 2030, losses of HK$159,499,000 (2014:
HK$146,910,000) that will expire within 20 years and
losses of nil (2014: HK$32,409,000) that will expire
within 5 years, other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, deferred taxation
had not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed retained profits
earned by the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to
HK$20,904,000 starting from 1 January 2008 under the
New Law of the PRC that requires withholding tax upon
the distribution of such profits to the shareholders, as
the Group was able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it was probable that
the temporary differences would not reverse in the
foreseeable future (2015: nil).

REEHER AEB 2R AHE
B 18 A323,682,00008 T( — T — [
F : 819,293,000/ JT ) o B A K g T8
BT R RGE )RR A K ® I BB E
/& $8254,262,000% T( = T — M & :
738,664,000/ ) RIELEMIBEE - K
R EEIBEE114,950,0008 (==
— P4 : 117,000,000 70 ) iR =T =
T F B 2 B 18 - 159,499,000 L( =
T — DU 4 1 146,910,0005 JT ) #5 M 204
NEBHzEBEARZEET(ZZE —WF :
32,409,000 ) B A FANEIH 2 K518
Hh BB ER AN o

BEFRIEN B -_TENF—HF—A8
o PEZHERRERARED KRB H
PSS EMBEINH 2T —NF=F=
T-ALFE BRAEEAEHERE
2 7 B0 R KA AR AT B 2R B [E
TRNER AUGEMBERETESPEH
ZHBRAZAD RIRBHEMNZERER
20,904,000 T RIEER B EE(—ZF—
hE &)
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. &
Number of
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE BT LB ordinary shares Amount
Elie s 8
HK$'000
THET
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 R-ZZ-=£mA—-H Z2-0F
and 31 March 2015 ZAET-BRZZ-AF=A=1+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREREA
At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FWA—H 1,627,316,290 162,731
Issue of shares upon exercise of AT B R M 21T (D
share options 37,076,000 3,708
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEEEEETRG (ME29)
the Notes (note 29) 349,038,461 34,904
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—ME=A=1+—H 2,013,430,751 201,343
Issue of shares upon exercise BT R Em TR G
of share options 20,377,734 2,038
Issue of shares (note) BT (M 7E) 400,000,000 40,000
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-RF=F=1+—H 2,433,808,485 243,381
All shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the FIERETRONSE T EAHEER ZIRAR
then existing shares in all aspects. DEBRFHAL
Note: In February 2015, the Company issued 400,000,000 Wit RZZE—RAFE_A  AAALRER0.16
shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$0.16 per share as part of BTEEERTERAEMBEIIETH
the deposit paid for acquisition of a property (see note 400,000,000 f& 17 » 1ERWEEY % 2 &
45(a)). D& (2R KEE45()) °
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company had a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was approved and adopted at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a
period of 10 years. The primary purpose was to recognise
the contribution of participants and to recruit and retain
high calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme included any full time employees (including
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the shares in issue at the date of passing the relevant
ordinary resolution at the general meeting while overall
limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless certain conditions
are fulfilled.

33. BRESE

AATFZBRAERE

ARRAR—_FENF-ATRABARTZER
FRIRE Eit/ERRA R+ F 2 B
Z([5H8 ) T2EMNERRBAZ2EE L
AR BERREESREERRIIHAKE
BEEEZBEZANER -FEZAER
SREARAEEZENE2BEE(BEE
= TWAITRIFENT R RELLIEE
) HER - ERA RERER -

RIBF SR 2 A B REETT M AT 8L
BT ZRERERE  TERBNEMEER
RARRBRRAEG LEBBERACHTRND
Z210%  MEREREFITEZZEHBART
EBBRAEM SRR DAY  TEBEETHE
BT 230% °

BEBERERDZBIE2EAN 28
AT R B T 37T S T 37T 2 D
BEBAABBESCRITRNZ1%  1EE
BOE THRIFERIN ©
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 33. BERESE(E)
Share option scheme of the Company (CONT’'D) AR ZBRESTEI(E)
The period within which the shares must be taken up RIREREEARG c ARBEERHARTE
under an option is any period as determined by the EAIRE D ARBBTF - AFRATR
Board, which shall not be more than 10 years from the % IR 4 HA PR P T fr] BRF R 1T {50 R AR 4 o

date on which the option is granted. The option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during the option

period.

The subscription price of the share options was BREZZRBEREEFRHAT  HBEBAERK
determined by the Board, but would be no less than the BRAMERUA TN HREE  (WVEHB SR ZW
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the offer ME:(NEEENHHBPIIAEIZ RN
date; (ii) the average of the closing price of shares on the FHURTE: (iR ELNBEZEE -

5 trading days immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii)
the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options could be accepted RbEREsZHATEELN R HE28H
within 28 days from the date of offer. The consideration NEMR - REERECRERIAT  Ze
for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no circumstance BAEEMIBER TG TARE -

be refundable.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D) 33. BRESE(E)
Share option scheme of the Company (CONT'D) AT ZBRESTE(E)
The movements of the share options granted to directors, BEEEMAREES EEREREHE
employees and advisors of the Group pursuant to the ZEREZZHBERMOT

Scheme were as follows:

Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding

Exercise at beginning during during during at end
Date of grant Notes price  of the year the year the year the year  of the year
RiA& iF3 kE EAERTRE  EREAE  FREEE  EREAM FRHAOR
HK§
i
For the year ended HEZZ-1%
31 March 2015 “R=t-HILEE
Employees: [E&:
28 January 2008 “EE\E-A=+/\A (a) 0.2053 732,311 (177,734) (376,843) (177,734) -
31 August 2010 “E-ZE\f=1-H (a) 0.1880 5,000,000  (5,000,000) - - -
25 October 2012 ZE-ZETACTRE (b) 0.1000 9,000,000  (9,000,000) - - -
732310 (1417773 (376883)  (177,734) -
Advisors: BR:
23 January 2008 “BEN\E-f-f2R (a) 02208 701,580 (701,580) - -
12 August 2010 “E-TENATZA (a) 0.1880 300,000 (300,000) - - -
26 February 2013 ZE-=FZAz+5A (b) 0.1230 2,000,000  (2,000,000) - - -
6 March 2013 “Z-ZEZARRB (b) 0.1320 1,600,000 (1,600,000) - - -
4 October 2013 “Z-ZFTARA (b) 0.1150 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - - -
21 October 2013 i (b) 0.1200 800,000 (800,000) - - -
6,901,580 (6,200,000 (701,580) - -
21,633,891 (20,377,734)  (1,078,423) (177,734) -
Exercisable at end of the year ERAfE B
Weighted average exercise mETHTREET)
price (HKS) 0.1354 0.1305 0.2167 0.2053 -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 33. BRESEI(E)
Share option scheme of the Company (CONT'D) AT ZBRETE(E)
Number of share options
BRESAE
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end of
Date of grant Notes price  of the year the year the year the year
RHAH it e FOERTR  FRERE  EREAE  FABROR
HKS
ey
For the year ended HE-Z-MF
31 March 2014 “A=+-BIEEE
Directors B2
25 April 2012 “E-“FRA-TAA (b) 0.1050 4,000,000 - (4,000,000 -
25 October 2012 :z—_ﬁﬂ_ﬁm (b) 0.1000 3,000,000 - (3,000,000 -
7,000,000 - (7,000,000) -
Employees: €& :
28 January 2008 ZEE\E-AZtNH (a) 0.2053 858,311 - (126,000) 732,311
31 August 2010 ZE-ZE\A=+-H (a) 0.1880 12,000,000 - (7,000,000 5,000,000
25 October 2012 “E-“E+A-1RA (b) 0.1000 10,350,000 - ( 350,000) 9,000,000
25 January 2013 —Z-=E-A-+HA () 0.1140 21,600,000 - 1,600,000) -
44,808,311 - (30,076,000) 14,732,311
Advisors: B
23 January 2008 ZEE\E-A=+=A (a) 0.2228 701,580 - - 701,580
12 August 2010 “E-ZEN\A+-H (a) 0.1880 300,000 - - 300,000
26 February 2013 ZE-=FZRZ15H (b) 0.1230 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
6 March 2013 —“F-Z#ZfAA (b) 0.1320 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
4 October 2013 “Z-=E+AmA (b) 0.1150 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
21 October 2013 “B-ZETACT-R (b) 0.1200 - 800,000 - 800,000
4,601,580 2,300,000 - 6,901,580
56,409,891 2,300,000  (37,076,0000 21,633,891
Exercisable at end of the year FRATE 21,633,891
Weighted average exercise mETaTEEGET)
price (HK$) 0.1298 0.1167 0.1257 0.1354
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 33. BRESE(E)
Share option scheme of the Company (CONT'D) AT ZBRESTE(E)
Notes: P AT -
(a) These share options were granted for an exercise period (a) ZEBREABEREREBHAETERA
of ten years from the date of grant of the share options T BN BB o

and vested immediately.

(b) These share options were granted for an exercise period (b) ZEEREDEREREEHERLFR
of five years from the date of grant of the share options T BN R o

and vested immediately.

(c) These options were granted for an exercise period of four () ZEBREABERERLBHRUER
years from the date of grant of the options and vested TEWENRFERE -
immediately.
No share options have been granted to the directors and RREEE AN - ANQ T ERES 2 T
employees of the Company pursuant to the Scheme for NEEERESTAERE-
both years.
The fair value of services received in return for share AT R EmMEE Y RS2 A EETY
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value SEMEHERE AL EEES - TEE
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of RE 2 AN BEMGETVIRANE —SFRBETTE
the services received was measured based on the Black- BERIS -

Scholes pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions: BEpE AT EERBSE
Grant date 4.10.2013 21.10.2013
—E-=F ZET-=fF
B E +AMA +A=Z+—H
Fair value at measurement dates (HK$) RitEBHHZAFEEGET) 0.0360 0.0362
Share price (HK$) P& CETT) 0.115 0.118
Exercise price (HK$) TEECET) 0.115 0.120
Expected volatility TEET R 1B 34.73% 34.65%
Expected option life (years) TERTEE AR HE EARR () 5 5
Expected dividend yield ?Eﬁﬂﬂn 8K 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ B I = 0.5% 0.5%
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33.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)
Share option scheme of the Company (CONT'D)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model had been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
recognised total expense of HK$82,000 in relation to
share options granted by the Company to advisors (2015:

nil).

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.48% (2014: 51.54%)
owned subsidiary of the Company

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC's
shareholders at the special meeting held on 6 September
2001 (the “SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC’s common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares
to any one individual in any one fiscal year.
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ERESTE(E)
ADT 2R 8(E)

BRHREDRAARRBRERBE—FZE
SERIEETE - DEAFTARBHRIIRE
BEEzREGMFRTEERIZE  TER
HRITREBEREZTUAHE - TEBARR
ZEHIEEH RN FEEZAFBEBRERY
@,

HE-_Z-NME=A=+—RHILFE K&
B AR A EEEE L OEREERMZ 2
EE82,0008 (=T —HF + &) o

AKATIEE51.48% (ZF—F : 51.54%)
# 3% =~ Kt B & JThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc.([SMC) Z R Rt &

SMCHEBEAZER T —FNANAH
BOZBREFR KRG EESMCHKR B B
([SMCEF &l ]) o SMCET &l T3 48 FSMCE
£ EERE BBAB - BHRARER
HEE S ERTREEARBMCEREK 2
F50% o SMCaT&E|##4 $£1,950,000A8SMC
L@ MEBRATRSTREEJEE R
450,000 f& 17 -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“"SMC”), a 51.48% (2014: 51.54%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. Each
option vested in one year from the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by SMC's Stock Option Committee, which consists of
two or more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The
subscription price of the share options will be no less
than the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or,
if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the common
stock, the subscription price will be no less than 110% of
the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date).

The movements of the share options granted to directors
of the Company and employees of the Group pursuant to
the SMC Scheme were as follows:

33. BRERE(E)

AAEFEHE51.48% (= F—F : 51.54%)
# #= 2 K B A SThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc.([SMCJ) Z B R REST &I (&)

HEBREREzBIEN2EAR 828
ANTEFEBREMBITIRETETZES
A& 1D & B # &300,0000% -

REBEBRERNRD 2HMRASMCEERR
RTE  MEPN AR R L A EEIB10
F(AMABHEEBRIONKALZEER
A BIRSE) - RBBRERETERLE—
FRRE -

BRiEsRABEHAMCZREEZE R
T ZESHSMCEERAMKIE ZME sk
A EEEHERK - BREZRBESTER
SMCERMREHN BB Z KWW E(RMET
BELTBRIO%I U EZHEEA REE
A TEASMCRHD R ELH BB TEZ
110%) °

RBESMCFHEIAARRIEZERAEE 2B
BMRMBREZZHHINMT
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 33. BRESEI(E)
Share option scheme of The Singing Machine AARFE51.48% (= —MF : 51.54%)
Company, Inc. ("SMC”), a 51.48% (2014: 51.54%) # # 2 if B A SThe Singing Machine
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT’'D) Company, Inc.([SMCJ) 2 BIRESH (&)
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year the year of the year
RLAH EE  EOERTRE  ERERE  FRBAM  FARAOER
Us$
T
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ-Z—1%
SA=T-HILEE

29 November 2004 “EIME+-AZtAA 0.75 40,000 - (40,000) -
1 December 2004 ZEERE+=A—H 0.77 20,000 - (20,000) -
9 May 2005 “ZTRERANA 0.60 34,000 - - 34,000
31 March 2006 S e 0.32 60,000 - - 60,000
10 April 2006 ZZERNEWATA 033 42,000 - - 42,000
31 March 2007 “Z3+F=R=+-H 0.93 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2008 A e = 0.45 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2009 ZZETNEZAZT-R 0.1 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2010 ZZ-ZE=A=1-R 0.03 60,000 - - 60,000
29 October 2010 Z-ZETAZTAR 0.06 520,000 - - 520,000
31 March 2011 “E——F=Zf=F-H 0.04 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2012 “E--#=f=1-H 0.12 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2013 “T-Z#=f=1-H 0.18 60,000 - - 60,000
1 July 2013 “T-ZFth-H 0.21 580,000 - - 580,000
31 March 2014 “T-ME=A=1-H 0.16 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2015 “T-nf=fA=1-H 0.17 - 60,000 - 60,000
1,896,000 60,000 (60,000) 1,896,000
Exercisable at end of the year FRATE 1,896,000
Weighted average exercise price (US$) iMETHITEE(FET) 0.22 0.17 0.77 0.20

Holders of the share options BRRESEA

are analysed as follows: AT
Directors (note) ER (M) 80,000 - - 80,000
Employees ES 1,816,000 60,000 (60,000) 1,816,000
1,896,000 60,000 (60,000) 1,896,000
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 33. BREE(E)
Share option scheme of The Singing Machine AARFE51.48% (= —MF : 51.54%)
Company, Inc. ("SMC”), a 51.48% (2014: 51.54%) # #= 2 K B A SThe Singing Machine
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D) Company, Inc.([SMCJ) 2 BIREST (&)
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year the year  of the year
RS THE ENEATE ERERE FREAN  ERERTE
Us$
ey
For the year ended 31 March 2014 Hz-Z-—n%
ZA=T-BLEE

31 December 2002 ZZE-FTZR=+-A 9.00 4,000 - (4,000) -
19 December 2003 ZZE=F+ZRATNA 1.97 4,880 - (4,880) -
6 February 2004 “ZEME-RAA 1.54 6,500 - (6,500) -
26 February 2004 ZEERE-A=+1A 1.36 20,000 - (20,000) -
29 March 2004 “EEME=R=FNA 1.20 20,000 - (20,000) -
29 November 2004 ZEERE+-AZtNA 0.75 40,000 - - 40,000
1 December 2004 ZZEMET-A-H 077 20,000 - - 20,000
9 May 2005 “TTRERANA 0.60 34,000 - - 34,000
31 March 2006 g e il = 0.32 60,000 - - 60,000
10 April 2006 “TERFNATA 0.33 42,000 - - 42,000
31 March 2007 I ey s e el = 0.93 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2008 ZZ2EN\E=A=+-H 0.45 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2009 ZEENE=A=+-H 0.11 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2010 ZZ2-ZE=A=+-H 0.03 60,000 - - 60,000
29 October 2010 “E-ZETACTAR 0.06 520,000 - - 520,000
31 March 2011 “T——%#=f=1-H 0.04 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2012 “T--#=f=1-H 0.12 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2013 “T-Z#=f=1-H 0.18 60,000 - - 60,000
1 July 2013 “T-ZFtA-AH 0.21 - 580,000 - 580,000
31 March 2014 “E-NE=ZA=+-H 0.16 - 60,000 - 60,000
1,311,380 640,000 (55,380) 1,896,000
Exercisable at end of the year FRAE 1,896,000
Weighted average exercise price (US$) MEFHTHEE(ER) 0.29 0.21 1.93 0.22

Holders of the share options BREEE A

are analysed as follows: AT
Directors (note) EX (M) 80,000 - - 80,000
Employees E8 1,231,380 640,000 (55,380) 1,816,000
1,311,380 640,000 (55,380) 1,896,000
Note: These directors resigned on 21 July 2014, M : ZEEFR_FT—NFLtA-+—HF
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ("SMC”), a 51.48% (2014: 51.54%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

The above options were granted for an exercise period of
nine years from the date on which the options are vested.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the services received is measured based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

33.

BRETE(E)

AARFHE51.48% (= F—F : 51.54%)
# # 2 if B A SThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc.([SMC]) Z iR R8I (&)

N EhBRERE A RENFART
{5 e

AP B I MRS Z fR7E 2 A FEETD
2EMRRHBREZ A FEEFE - AU
R 2 AP EE2 IR 2 — R
EEEAE -

BlEz A FEERBRR

Grant date 1.7.2013 31.3.2014 31.3.2015
—F—= —E—-UE —E-HF
i A 8 tA—HA =ZA=+—-H =ZA=+-—H
Fair value at measurement date (US$) RitEBHEZ AFEE
(E7) 0.21 0.15 0.13
Share price (US$) MRE(ET) 0.21 0.17 0.17
Exercise price (US$) TEE(ZETT) 0.21 0.16 0.17
Expected volatility TERHR I8 304.1% 201.1% 142.8%
Expected option life (years) TERT AR RE EARR (£F) 3 3 3
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 42 7 g FI) R 0.21% 0.15% 0.26%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC's share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$303,000 (2014:

HK$779,000) for the year in relation to share options
granted by SMC.
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34.

35.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. EXEBERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBERNEREEEBAEBEHERERRE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern EHSETE  BRASEZEBAFEL
while maximising the return to shareholders through the B8 NRRRGEZADR - NEBEE
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's BERBEEA A F MM o
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, REEEAEERFEARFHE(BENRT
which includes the amount due to immediate holding 27 28 24%30% %JEZE%ZFEHE&?“
company, borrowings, bank overdrafts and convertible RAZFIERE - RITEX RATRKRES -
bonds disclosed in notes 27, 28, 24 and 30, respectively MEReRREFE TEIEE VRARNEEE A
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable EhER(RREEEITRARERE)
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure RARIESTEHRTEARERE - il z—
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the MREFEBRERKAREBERMMEZ
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of c REEERBETHRG - BRR
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure 7 BITHEBIERNREEBS I - F
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as BB ERERE -
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. @I A
Categories of financial instruments 2RTEWNER
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-AF —E U
=Z=A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZRE - 9,400
Investments held for trading ﬁ{”ﬁjﬁﬁéz&ﬁ 453 475
Loans and receivables (including & 3% & X
cash and cash equivalents) (E%iﬁi&iﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁlﬁﬁ ) 77,693 56,006
Financial liabilities Ea= =N
Other financial liabilities R AT IR Z
at amortised cost HitegaE 166,836 137,100
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35.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors
and deposits, available-for-sale investments, investments
held for trading, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, creditors, amount due to a shareholder, amount
due to immediate holding company, bank overdrafts,
borrowings, convertible bonds and long-term creditors.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group’'s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

35.

SRTR(Z
BEEREEEEREE

FEBTECHTABEREGRRERES -
AHEEZRE HEEEZRE  DER
ROTER ROEEREAEE  ENERE - E
MBRFOR - BNERZERQBREA - RIT
BX O fEE - TmRES R RAREIRR -
HESRTAFENAEMERE - B2%%
ST ARz AR FORERR 2 B R
X - EEBEELRERZFRR  BRE
RARHTESER AEEBREERE
FHR -

year.
Currency risk B E bk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency KRR ZRMBRR 2 EEEEREEIN

denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities (mainly represented by debtors, bank balances,
creditors, borrowings and long-term creditors) at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

7
C BUE AR B EAEINE R -

SEEBLIINEHECEREERERBE
(XBEEWREE - B1747F  BHEE -
BERRARMERE)RREHEARZER
(ERUNNE

2015 2014

—ZET-RF —ZE—INF
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FERT FHET FET
Hong Kong dollars BT - 34,403 22,193 305,372
Renminbi AR - 27 78,860 200
United States dollars ETT 3,540 - 19,936 58,667
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35.

ZE-AF=A=T—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Currency risk (CONT'D)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars will be immaterial

and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi against each group entity’s functional currency
5% is the
sensitivity rate used in management’s assessment of the

(including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi).

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive/negative number below indicates
a decrease/an increase in loss for the year where Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi strengthen 5% against each
group entity’s functional currency. For a 5% weakening
of Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi against each group
entity’s functional currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss for the year.

35.

EMTAGE
HERRERERREE(E)

HH AR ()

5 1 B A1 3 SR A B RO
EREREINEAR  RARERBEE
$h B A SMEER -

BEE DT

SEERISARZINERREBET - A
RERETT - IRIFAMAIE TS - BTiax
TEREZRZWBZEBRM - FtY iR
GURE DT

TRAMHAEETEHATIRARENLS
SEEBEZDEEE(REEIRARYE)
ZEREARTHAS R ZHEE 5% A
EEEHINERER AR AEF BTG ATIR
ARSURELLE - SUXEDITEBIEAINE
STEMARENEBIERE  THEINEEERE
SR HHERNFRNBREEL AR - UTE
B/ BEEBEXRASIAARBESEEE
BIEEEFAES%EFABEZRE
BNE - B TRARERLSEEEEIEE
EIEES% - AedFABEENXSER
REE -

2015
—E-FHEF
HK$'000

2014

— e
HK$'000
TEx TAET

BT
AR

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi

(1,436) (11,823)
(1) 3,284
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—HESAS+—HIHEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Currency risk (CONT'D)

Sensitivity analysis (CONT'D)

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group was also exposed to currency risk concerning
certain amounts due from/to group entities, which were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities. When Renminbi
strengthened 5% against the relevant foreign currency,
loss for the year of the Group would decrease by
HK$3,875,000 and vice versa (2015: nil).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to note payable (note 25) and convertible bonds
(note 30). The management continuously monitors interest
rate exposure.

The Group had cash flow interest rate risk on floating-
rate borrowings. The Group currently does not have any
policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

The interest expenses on the Group’'s floating-rate
borrowings were mainly linked with HIBOR.
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B AEETHEYR ENEEEBUES
BUREM I EBHEZETHRER
BREERR g ARBEE@INEABESY%
B AEEFRNEEKR 3,875,000 7T
(ZZ—1F &) R2MA -
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R = E b

7 & B T R FE A R IR (B9 RE25) RAT A&
F(ME30)F Rz R FEEMNEXRER - &
BEEERAESAN AR

AEBEFREEAERSRENTRER - K

EIEMIE%HEHﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁﬁméﬂ
R - AT BEEESEEMNEEAR  ®

ﬁ%%%h%%ﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%ﬂ@°

AEBEFREREZNERAXEIBREFTER
TREFEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Interest rate risk (CONT'D)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate
borrowings (including borrowings and bank overdrafts) at
the end of the reporting period (notes 28 and 24). The
analysis was prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease represented the management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2014 would increase/
decrease by HK$295,000 (2015: nil). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its floating-rate borrowings.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis was
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure did not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to price risk. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

35.

SRTHE(EZ
BEREEEERBE(E)

=@ (E)

BRE DT
ATBRZESMIDRERRERAER2F L
fEE(EREERRITES) 2 M EE R (M
28K 24) MESE © %A T THRER N S 4
BRzAEEABEEHENBEFENTISE
B o M EF O DS0EER - RREE
BHMEATea B8 27T -

fis ¥ 38 hn I ADSOEE T - MATH E At
EHERFTE  AAEEHE_T—
FZA=+—HILFEZEBESEN RS
295,000 (= —HF : &) FEZHR
NEBEAEZSBE ZFERBAAK

ERERR FHAZARIERRFAZ
Rk - MERESTAIRREBNERDR -

ERE S
AEBZFEEEZRERBEHRRREA
FEEE - Bt AEBEAREBERE
- BEEEZBHESTRARZIREASE
EERREE
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35.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Price risk (CONT'D)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based

on the exposure to price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had
been 5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31 March
2015 would decrease/increase by HK$23,000 (2014:
HK$24,000) as a result of the changes in held-for-trading
investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
at the end of reporting period in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other receivables at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in North America. The trade debtors
located in North America accounted for 29% (2014:
58%) of the Group’s total trade debtors as at 31 March
2015. The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers as 23% (2014: 15%) and 67% (2014: 54%) of
the total trade debtors was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively. In
the opinion of the directors, all five largest customers are
customers with good reputation and creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains sufficient reserve of cash and
adequate committed line of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirement in the short
and long term. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated
from operations and borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

35.

SRTHE(EZ
BEREEEERBE(E)

FERR(E)
RREFHEREEFEHERTRER

MR ZERT Al RBESFEERRA
fR -

rEERWEE S ZEERBREPEILE
Me RZZE—RAFEZA=Z+—8 - uidt=
Mz EKRE S RBEEAEEREYKE 5 KRE
BEE29% (ZZT—MF : 58%) - HRAE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 35. @RI A(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies BRAKREEERERBE(E)
(CONT'D)
Liquidity risk (CONT'D) RBESRR(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables HEEERFEERER
Repayable
on demand Total
Effective and less than 13 3 months Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year Tyear  cash flows amounts
ES
HR1EA ARRRE
ERRIZE B8 12388 3MEAEIE —ENE RERE Ak

% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR TER TiEn TR

2015 —B-%fF
Creditors and other payables ERREREMERFTE - 66,371 4,593 - 15,011 85,975 85,975
Amount due to a shareholder ENRRTE - 172 - - - 172 172
Amount due to immediate B ERERARE
holding company - 14,871 - - - 14,871 14,871
Note payable EREE 6.0 - 1,170 3,510 4,833 9,513 8,943
Convertible bonds MRRESR 16.2 - - - 80,625 80,625 56,875
81,414 5763 3,510 100,469 191,156 166,836
2014 —2-pF
Creditors and other payables ENREREMENFE - 36,959 3,870 13,497 - 54,326 54,326
Amount due to a shareholder ERRRZE - 12,000 - - - 12,000 12,000
Borrowings B8 39 68,135 638 4 - 68,814 68,805
Bank overdrafts RITEX 59 1,969 - - - 1,969 1,969
119,063 4,508 13,538 - 137,109 137,100
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 35. ®MIRA(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies MRAREEERERBEE)
(CONT'D)
Liquidity risk (CONT'D) REBESRAR(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (CONT'D) REELRAEREREER(E)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause BAEREREFTIGRZRITEEFT A LXE
were included in the “on demand and less than 1 month” MOMTRERKRDMEREE ] ZFHEE
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March BN -RZT—WOFE=A=+—H  ZFK
2014, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of TERARAR A ¢ 4% 568,135,000/ T
these bank loans amounted to HK$68,135,000 (2015: (ZZ—1F |)  KERAEEZHHBMN
nil). Taking into account the Group's financial position, o ARBEERERITIISETERSEZE
the directors of the Company did not believe that it was BREEKAKFER - ARAEZRREZFTIR
probable that the banks would exercise their discretionary TEFRERBERHETEHI A EIER
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors AER L HRERE —FANEE - MBE
of the Company believe that such bank loans would be FEERAHNAABELNERESMEH
repaid within one year after the end of the reporting HmT
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows according to the
scheduled repayment dates were set out as follows:
Repayable
Weighted  on demand Total
average and less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year cash flows amounts
REXR
PR1EA RERRSE
il B ilES & 123F  3ERZ1% MERE BHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TEn TEr TEr
Borrowings &
At 31 December 2015 RZB-HF+-A=t+-H - - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-WF+-A=1+-H 3.8 42,000 15,505 11,183 68,688 68,135
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D) 35. €T RA(Z
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIAZAFEENE
This note provides information about how the Group AfFRHEBAEBRERBeREE AT
determines fair values of various financial assets. BEEEFEZER -
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are REZKEMEERANFTEEIGZEZ2AEES
measured at fair value on a recurring basis MEEZNFEE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair AEBzHsERMEENSHREHBRER
value at the end of each reporting period. The following FREEE TERREHEBEZSeMEEZ
table gives information about how the fair values of NEEBEEEHE(LERA ZEERM
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the DREAEE) CER -

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Relationship of
Valuation Significant  unobservable
Fair values as at Fair values as at Fair value technique(s) Unobservable inputs to
Financial assets 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 hierarchy and key inputs input(s) fair value
FABEHA
RZZ-15ZR=1-8 RZE-ME=A=1-H fHERITR EXTARE HEALVEE
tHEE ZAVER ZOVER ATEESH TERAHE BAHE ZBR
(1) Non-derivative financial assets Listed equity securities in Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices N/A N/A
classified as investments held Hong Kong - HK$171,000 Hong Kong - HK$167,000 in active market
for trading in the consolidated  Listed equity securities outside  Listed equity securities outside
statement of financial position ~ Hong Kong - HK$282,000 Hong Kong - HK$308,000
REUBRABRABEARE Mﬁi’étﬁa‘iﬂ%%” RER LM BAES 2= EREMEHAEAE NaR NER
BEREHESHEAR — 171,004 ~167,000%7C
1A %fnﬁ\\imZMu % RERRN LI 2 BAES
- 282,000% - 308,000%
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 fair MEFERN  AFEEFENE—H - F
value measurements in both years. —i & B = o B A o
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36. DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. fiIBABFELEE AR

In March 2015, the Company completed the transfer of RZTE—RAF=A ARFETKE=Z
entire interests in Dual Success Holdings Limited (“Dual Dual Success Holdings Limited ([Dual
Success”) and its subsidiaries to a holding company Success D REMB ARz 2 ERETER
deployed by the administrators for realisation for the ABLEIRAREVEREA 2Pz EHE 2 EK

benefit of the creditors of the Company. ~a]e
The detail of the net assets of the Dual Success and its Dual SuccessEMBRARZ EEFEFE

subsidiaries were as follows: U
HK$'000
FHET

Analysis of assets and liabilities KEEHIEZEER

over which control was lost: BED

Investment properties wEME 27,075
Property, plant and equipment M - WERERE 56,562
Prepaid lease payments AR HEERIA 3,321
Available-for sales investments AfEERE 9,400
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEURERTE « e MTENFKIE 2,663
Bank balances and cash RITETFRR2 4,224
Creditors and accrued charges FETARTE K FEET B (559,007)
Amount due to a shareholder JFE A A% SR RIE (11,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIERE (4,514)
Taxation payable FERHIIR (1,046)
Net liabilities transferred EECsAERE (472,322)
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36.

37.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. B RFELLGAEARE)
(CONT'D)
HK$'000
FET
Loss on deconsolidation of Dual Success Dual Success X HFfE R 7= 1
and its subsidiaries: A ARZESE
Net liabilities transferred FregE e EFE 472,322
Assignment of intercompany receivables Dual Success & E B A 7]
from Dual Success and its subsidiaries A E E(EBGRIAE 2 e (451,422)
Waiver of intercompany receivables Dual Success & E i@ A 7
by Dual Success and its subsidiaries WE R A ERGRIE 24,081
Reinstatement of the balances among the EEAEEHDual Success &
Group and Dual Success and its subsidiaries HINB QR Z &8 (63,771)
Release of translation reserve BmEFEERR 3,237
(15,553)
Net cash outflow from deconsolidation of subsidiaries KB A TIE LGS AE 2R SR F5E
Bank balances and cash RITETF RS (4,224)
DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE OF SHARES 37. B2k E QR RS

IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 June 2014, the Company made a distribution in
specie of shares in a subsidiary, SIH to the shareholders
of the Company, 2,033,808,485 shares in SIH were
distributed to the shareholders whose names appeared
on the register of members of the Company on the same
date.
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37.

DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE OF SHARES

IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONT’'D)

The detail of the net assets of SIH and its subsidiaries

were as follows:

37. BYTIK

BB B (&)

SIHREMBAR 2 BEEFEFBNT :

HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities KEEHEZEER
over which control was lost: BES
Investment properties wEMHE 233,300
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERERE 14,040
Inventories FE 3,926
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWARIE - & RIBRIA 123,693
Bank balances and cash RITREERER® 17,609
Creditors and accrued charges FE AR IE K 5T B (139,072)
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEBE (481)
Taxation payable P BIIE (34)
Borrowings BE (73,224)
Net assets transferred EECEETRE 179,757
HK$'000
FET
Loss arising from distribution in specie B RME A ERG
of shares in a subsidiary: EEZEE
Fair value of shares in a subsidiary WEBARRKRND 2 AT EER 124,062
Net assets transferred HECEEFE (179,757)
Reinstatement of the balances among EEAREHRBESIHE
the Group and SIH and its subsidiaries HEI B AR 2 ek (86,167)
Non-controlling interests FEVERRAE = 2,121
Release of translation reserve MEFERE 795
(138,946)
Net cash outflow from distribution in specie BEYDIRMNBRABRMDATEZ
of shares in a subsidiary WM FE
Bank balances and cash wITHEFEES® (17,609)
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 11 July 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for the sale of its entire
interest in Success Base Industries Limited (“Success
Base”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which
was engaged in manufacturing and selling of plastic
products, at a cash consideration of HK$440,000. The net
asset value of Success Base at 11 July 2013 was nil and
therefore resulted in a gain on disposal of HK$440,000
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2014.

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

38.

39.

HE—RBHE QT
RZE—=F+tA+—H FEEHR—-F
BLFE=ZAF—HHE WHEERE
440,000 THEENREHEEX AR 2 A
([EmEXE]D (AEE2EBRBZNER
Al RELEERBEEBRBRER) 222
o BEREECEEFER-_ZT—=FtA
T—BAZT  FHILERGHE 440,000
T REBEZE-WNF=ZA=1+—HLEFE
EBENIER

L ENES
2015 2014
=F-1% —TWF
HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of REEVE(ZZE—OF - PWE - BEEX
acquisition of properties (2014: BIEENEREREVBRREBZER
property, plant and equipment) B sz
contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 264,976 201
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40.

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

REENEE
fERREA

RBERBR - ARERBET A 2 C &
BYELLHOARTIHM XA 2 RE&

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented RERAERT
premises as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 4,419 4,811
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EENF(BEREMTFREEA) 16,654 16,498
Over five years iR AF 1,704 5,794
22,777 27,103

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office and warehouses. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years (2014:
from one to six years) and rentals are fixed over the lease

terms.

BREBONTEAREZRRERRBEZE
MNHE HOKEERREER —E2AF(=
T-MF —EXRNF)NE - MESRNEL

HAREER -
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. REBENAEE)
(CONT'D)
As lessor ERHBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REHBR  REAEEEBEARTEI 2T
contracted with tenants for future minimum lease AIHEH A A - B 51 HA R R B 2 AR 2R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which SEBEMT :
fall due as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF Z—ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R - 16,983
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EENF(HEMEREEAN) - 31,697
Over five years BBRF - 12,759
- 61,439

As at 31 March 2014, these properties had committed
tenants for terms ranging from one to eight years (2015:

nil).
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EEEHA

RIS MRK - AEBERE T EEERR
- REEREREFCRBREFOZE
R REAEZEEEMT -

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
certain assets with the following carrying values to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group and the
margin accounts with securities brokers:

42,

2015 2014

“EBE-RF —T-WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&TT

Investment properties wEME - 228,400

Leasehold properties HEME - 6,323
Deposits with securities brokers BIEREWERIE - 7%

as included in debtors, deposits MIEMRIES 2

and prepayments VDAL RS 47 50

Investments held for trading BEEEZRE 73 54

Bank deposits RITIF K - 1,077

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees, including
directors. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme implemented by the Hong Kong Government for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustee. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, subject to
a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for each
employee with effect from 1 June 2014 (from 1 April
2013 to 31 May 2014: HK$1,250).

42.

RAKERETE
AREETEAMEAAKER(REES)
RUFEREPBIG B - RBH B2 AER
AEBZAENIRE  LABIETEANL
ESHRERE -

REBABAZBEEREBLATBBN
HITzwEestE - RESHECEERK
SEZEESDRFBE AXTANESKE
HRER - AEEMFEEL ZHRAEEH
HEKRAZ5%  BNEISAERRLERA
1,500 T( —E—=FMHA—BE_F—
MERA=+—H8:1,2508mx) BN=F
—ENA—BRBRER -
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BHE_T

42.

43.

—HESAS+—HIHEE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
(CONT'D)

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party

transactions.

March 2015, the
Company issued the Bonds at a principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 and paid coupon interest of
HK$949,000 to the immediate holding company of
the Company (2014: nil).

(a) During the year ended 31

During the year end 31 March 2014, the Group
paid salaries and other short term employee
benefits of HK$771,000 to certain close family
members of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
employees of the Group (2015: nil).

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the directors, during the year
are set out in note 9.
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ZBEERAKBHETEIZKE © ZFT BIKE
RRIRREARTEERTAD L RRKRERNE
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RERRMEZ S BIFMRERKBEERH

=,
N

BAEALRS
AEETTATHEALRS -

(a) #HE-Z—RAF=-A=+—HLHF
E © RR AR A £ 575,000,000
TETES  UMARARZEEE
& A 7% FE H E949,00008 7T
(ZE—mF &) -

BHE_T-ME=A=1+—HILE
B AKEERAAREZRZEIER
RAGFERELBOBREKEE
AREEREE MM ESEZ N2 H M
REMEHEERFRT71,0008 T
(ZZ—hHF &)

(b) EEEBABZHM

FR G TBEEABR BHESZH
SRBHNMEI ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

or the year ended 31 March 20

BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44, T EHE QA
General information of subsidiaries MBARZ —KRER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARG EEMBARFBERT :

follows:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

Attributable
equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
HMA LSRR BRTEER REEER
WEARER E¥nY RE/EMEAEE hAER TERH
2015 2014
“E-1E ZE-ME

Cosmo Communications

United States

US$1,571,000

93.8% 93.8%

Trading in electrical

Corporation (“Cosmo”) of America/ appliances and
Canada investment holding
Cosmo Communications X8/ MmeX 1,571,000% 7T 93.8% 93.8% EREMEHRREALR
Corporation([Cosmo])
Harvest Way Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Harvest Way Holdings Limited EBEARES (B 100% 100% #®EZR
Master Light Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
BECRARAT B 2B 100% 100% REZR
Starlight Electronics USA Inc. United States US$10,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic products
of America
Starlight Electronics USA Inc. e 10,0007 100% 100% BEERES
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Securities trading and trading
in electronic products
ARTSREERAR Bk 2R 100% 100% #HHEERETERES
Starlite Consumer Electronics United States Us$20 100% 100%  Trading in electronic products
(USA) Inc. of America
Starlite Consumer Electronics e 20ET 100% 100% ERERZSH

(USA) Inc.
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’'D) 44, T EHBE AT (£Z)

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

Place of
incorporation

or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

MERARZ-—RER(E)

Attributable
equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
B BRTEER REEES
MELARER BB RE/EMEAHE ks TEEHK
2015 2014
-1 ZT-[F
The Singing Machine United States US$380,706 51.48% 51.54%  Trading in consumer
Company, Inc. ("SMC")** of America karaoke audio equipment
and electronic products
The Singing Machine %8 380,706 7T 51.48% 51.54% HERHOKEERER
Company, Inc.([SMCJ)** ETERES
Dual Success Holdings Limited*** British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Dual Success Holdings Limited***  ZEBHHERES (Ex - 100% %EZR
Niceday Limited*** Hong Kong HKS2 - 100%  Investment holding
KABRAF > &R VAT - 100% RERRK
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited*** plastic products
EREGEBRRARAF Gl 20,000,000/ ¢ - 100% ZBERRERHE
Starfair Manufacturing (Panyu) PRC* HK$43,300,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited*** electronic products and
property investment
BMERETHEBRAR e 43,300,000 7 - 100% EFERRERHEERNERE
Starlight Exports Limited*** Hong Kong HKS2 - 100%  Trading in electronic products
T ABRA e 2B - 100% BFfERES
Starlight Manufacturers Limited***  Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 - 100%  Merchandising of materials
Starlight Manufacturers Limited*** 2 S /R 100,000 - 100% HEHE
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TRMEAR (&)
WA T2 — AR ()

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44,

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

Place of
incorporation

or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

Attributable
equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MRS, BRTEER REEES
MEARER EXBE RE/EMEAHE ey 5y TEEH
2015 2014
ZE-1% ZZ-MF
Starlight Marketing Development Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Trading and marketing of
Limited*** electronic products
AETSRRERAR B BT - 100% EFfEREHREH
Starlight R&D Limited*** Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Material sourcing and trading
in electronic products and
components
FEMTERAF ik 10,0007 - 100% MHERRETERR
#HES
Top Spring Technology Limited***  British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Top Spring Technology Limited***  EB#FRES (E - 100% HEER
ACME Delight Limited**** Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding
HERBR AR A 281 - 100% RERR
Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited****
BNBERBRRDRF >+ B 25,000,000/ - 100%  RERR
Merrygain Holding Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 96%  Property investment
Limited (“Merrygain")****
POREERAF(PG])r* &k 5,000,000/87C - %% WERE
Nice States Investment Limited****  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Property investment
Nice States Investment Limited**** &% 2B - 100% HNERE
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44, T EMBLF(E)

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D) MELARZ—RER (&)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
or registration/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
HMALRER/ BRTEER REEES

MELARER BB RE/EMEAHE hxgs TEEHK

2015 2014

-1 ZT-[F

Noble Win Limited**** Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Property investment
BRERRF £k 281 - 100% WERE
SIH Limited**** British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
SIH Limited**** REAAREE 10,0007 7T - 100% RERRK
Star Fair Electronics Company Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 - 100%  Trading in electronic products
Limited****
EBEFBRAR 5 15,090,0007% 7 - 100% EFEMES
Star Light Electronics Company Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100%  Trading in electronic
Limited**** products and property
investment
HREFHERRA 3 13,000,000/ - 100% EFEREZRVERE
Starleaf Development Limited****  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding
ERRRAROR > Eh 2B - 100% BAER
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited****
THEBRERDF &k 73,920,1927% - 100% RERR
Starlight Video Limited**** Hong Kong HK$4 - 100%  Provision of nominee services
for group companies and
trading of electronic products
HRFEERRA**x R 4% - 100% AEELERERERBER

BTERES
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44,

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

* These subsidiaries were PRC wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

*x The common stock of SMC is quoted on the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of America.

*oxx These subsidiaries were deconsolidated during the year.

***x*  These subsidiaries were distributed during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Other than Harvest Way Holdings Limited and certain
companies incorporated in Samoa which are held directly
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are held indirectly
by the Company. None of the subsidiaries had any loan
capital outstanding at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

TEWB AR (E)
MEBARZ—RER(E)
* REHEBARAREABEELE -

S SMCZ EBBREXBSINZ ZHERE

* kK

ZEMBLRENFAELEE AR -

* kK Kk

2
At
=
Wﬂ

BRRCRNFERDA

EERBLERMAINARRIMERRIEAF
EZHXEREENTE AWK AEHEE
FETERD  cEFRRMREHAGHER
AZFE BLEHNBRITE -

BrHarvest Way Holdings Limited 2% T
EESEMEYNARARQRREEFS
G- PR H ALK B A B R AR A MR
B o RAFRSAFERNEMAER - 5 EH
BARIAEEMRERERER -
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

Information about the composition of the Group at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Principal activity

44, T EHBE AT (£Z)
WEAT 2 —RER(F)

T~

Place of
incorporation
and operations

RBEHMER FEAKEAKRNERHD

Number of wholly-owned

subsidiaries
As at 31 March

TEMBAREAER
FEEW S B L R 3 3 BE =ZA=+-—H
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E-F
Material sourcing and trading in electronic Hong Kong - 1
products and components aBE
MEFRBEREFERRBEES
Merchandising of materials Jersey/PRC - 1
tHE M BERS, T E
Manufacturing and sale of electronic products PRC - 1
and property investment A
BFERBENMBEALRYERE
Trading in electronic products Hong Kong - 4
BFEMES 5
United States of America 2 2
EH
Property investment Hong Kong - 2
MERE s
Trading in electronic products and property Hong Kong - 1
investment 6
BEFEREH MYERE
Securities trading and trading in electronic products  Hong Kong 1 1
BHREENETEMED 0
Manufacturing and sale of plastic products PRC - 1
BREREENIEE E
3 14
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44. FEMBLR (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEARFEREZRIZERENB AR Z
material non-controlling interests B3

TREJ A EEEEEAFERERIFEE

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Principal activity

Place of
incorporation

and operations

FE AR L N S 1 B

BEEMB AR ZHE

Number of non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries
As at 31 March

FEEMBARHE
R=A=+—H
2015 2014

—E-HF —T—MEOF

Trading in consumer karaoke audio and United States of 5 5
equipment and electronic products America/Macau/British

HERNOKEZEERXHBERETERES Virgin Islands

EB R

EEERRES

Trading in electrical appliances United States of America/ 4 4
BEREMES Canada/Hong Kong

XB/ mMEX/EE
Property investment Hong Kong - 1
MERE 6

9 10

Other subsidiaries not disclosed above are either
investment holding companies or inactive during both

years.

==
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44,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests (CONT’'D)

The table below provides details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:(CONT'D)

Place of
incorporation

44,

TEMEAR(E)
BHEAFRRERFSERAHBAR2

FHE(E)

Proportion of
ownership interests and
voting rights held by

Profit (loss) allocated to

TR AEEHEEERFERERIFEE
BEWMBLRZFHE (&)

Accumulated

and principal non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business As at 31 March Year ended 31 March As at 31 March
FERBESENME AREFEREEN Zit
HRBALBER REGRRZELD aH (58 FERER
HWEADER TEERNE RZA=1-A BEZA=t-HLEE RZB=+-H
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZZ-nf “T-PF ZR-EF CET-MF ZE-Rf CT@F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT TAR TER
SMC and its subsidiaries (note a) United States of America/Macau/ 48.52% 48.46% 791 4,699 18,369 17,232
SMCREMEBBAA (Mizra) British Virgin Islands
X8/ 2N/ SBERRES
Cosmo and its subsidiaries (note b) United States of America/Canada/ 6.20% 6.20% (999) (980) (3.113) (2,932)
Cosmo R &M 2 (fifstb) Hong Kong
8/mex/E%
Merrygain Hong Kong - 4.00% 11 (47 - 1,926
%) EA
Individually immaterial subsidiary with - 184
non-controlling interests
EEFERERERIFEANBAA
15,256 16,410
Notes: B 5
(a) The subsidiaries of SMC are all wholly-owned during both (a) RREEER SMCHH B AR AR
years. BHE -
(b) The subsidiaries of Cosmo are all wholly-owned during (b) RREFEEN  CosmotIMiBRARY A
both years. TEHAE -
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44,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44,

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (CONT’'D)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before elimination

of intragroup transactions.

FEMBAT(E)

BREEAFERERFZEHRGHEBELARZ
HE(E)

TXHEIAEEEEERFERERMNER
BlZMBERBE - TXEIWPEERE
BRYHEERR S ZAIZEE

SMC SMC
2015 2014
—F-hRFf Z—T@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets FEMBEE 22,369 23,084
Current assets MBEE 83,462 71,017
Current liabilities mBaE (75,215) (65,167)
Equity e 30,616 28,934
Revenue WA 306,605 244,761
Other income and expenses H s K s (305,277)  (235,064)
Profit and total comprehensive RERHNE WA
income for the year 1,328 9,697
Net cash outflow from operating activities K& EBIRE M H FEE (8,780) (1,101)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REEHHESRACORL ) FE
investing activities 799 (1,077)
Net cash outflow from financing activities mMEEER SR ERE (1,674) (153)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR&RIRESEEEBEE R EHE (9,655) (2,331)
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 44. TEWBRR(E)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXRFEREZRIZEREWNB AR Z
material non-controlling interests (CONT'D) HE(E)
Cosmo Cosmo
2015 2014
—B-RFE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Non-current assets SERBEE 64 68
Current assets MENEE 28,688 47,281
Current liabilities mEa A (85,090)  (100,768)
Deficiency in equity W A (56,338) (53,419)
Revenue WA 46,395 84,792
Other income and expenses Hham ks (62,510)  (100,598)
Loss for the year REEEE (16,115) (15,806)
Other comprehensive income for the year REZEM2EKR 13,191 4,032
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBBEBREEAS BT
expense for the year (2,924) (11,774)
Net cash outflow from operating activities K& EBIRE R HIFE (488) (138)
Net cash outflow from financing activities B EEE SR b IERE - (313)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents H&REIRESEBEBER RV FRE (488) (451)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-AF=HA=T—HIFE

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

On 16 January 2015, the Group entered into
a purchase agreement for the acquisition of
a property in the PRC from a third party, at a
consideration of RMB105,000,000 for which
RMB50,000,000 will be settled by the allotment
and issue of 400,000,000 shares of the Company
of HK$0.1 each at HK$0.16 per share and
RMB55,000,000 will be settled by cash. At
31 March 2015, a total amount of deposit of
HK$76,600,000 has been paid by allotment and
issue of shares and cash. Up to date of this report,
the acquisition has not yet completed.

On 17 March 2015, the Group entered into
a purchase agreement (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 27 April 2015) for
the acquisition of a property in the PRC from a
connected person, which is controlled by Mr. Wang
Jing and his family member, at a consideration
of HK$208,276,000 payable by the issue of
promissory note of the Company. Up to date of
this report, the acquisition has not yet completed.

(a)

45. HEWREE

RZE—RAF—A+/0 ~&E
RIN—HEEHZE ME=FWE
TRPBEANOYE REAA
R #105,000,0007T © EF AR
50,000,0007T # i@ i@ & & K iR 7
0168 Tl EREITERNEITLZ
N2 7]400,000,0008% 815 2 A
fF i AR ¥55,000,0007T# AR &
FREMN -RZE—RF=A=+
— A 476,600,000 T2 &
ERBiEERETROEREAR
FUZA - BHEARERAH BH
W BE MR TERK ©

R-E—RAFE=ZA++AH AEE
AV mEEHE(KABRA=-ZF—
AFNAZ+EEEZH A RS
) BfEAT(AEREERE
KRR B ) B LA BR ey
—IHY % - KB A208,276,000%
T BB RBITARRRNERY
FRE - BEARESHH - BB
W B i R TEAK o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFHBEHRE

Year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=+—RHLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——% Z%2-——F —F-=F —T-N§ ZE-IF
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHBT
RESULTS B4
Turnover =F -] 637,633 631,830 515,408 366,953 381,863
Loss before taxation B %54 Bl BT 18 (43,074) (183,085)  (65,776) (199,046) (245,868)
Taxation FimE (840)  (10,434) 7,389 9,682 (1,263)
Loss for the year RNEEEE (43,914) (193,519)  (58,387) (189,364) (247,131)
Attributable to: THIALEA :
Owners of the Company KNARER A (41,216) (194,862)  (69,829) (193,036) (246,934)
Non-controlling interests eI AR RS (2,698) 1,343 11,442 3,672 (197)
(43,914) (193,519)  (58,387) (189,364) (247,131)
At 31 March
N=A=+—8
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F ZT-"F —FT-=F —T-NF ZE-HF
FET FHET FET FET FBT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Total assets BERE 1,082,652 834,188 685,728 530,375 280,040
Total liabilities BEEE 409,159 316,356 201,004 192,249 182,740
673,493 517,832 484,724 338,126 97,300
Equity attributable to owners VN/NCIETZ SN
of the Company FE(E R 674,683 517,543 472,893 321,716 82,044
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE RS (1,190) 289 11,831 16,410 15,256
673,493 517,832 484,724 338,126 97,300
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BRARQ AR BR LB R ZEHN

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIBHEHMK AEARQR AP KA RHTER ZERH

Company at the end of reporting period includes: FanT
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIELTIRE - 72,184
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NGRS 136,725 266,231
Bank balances RITHETT - 2,018
Other current assets HEiREEE 193 41
Total assets BEBE 136,918 340,474
Accrued charges Bt &R 3,295 12,590
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHBY /B A B F0A 53 24,595
Amount due to a director JEEERIA 140 -
Amount due to an immediate EREEZERARNIEA
holding company 2,370 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 56,875 -
Net assets BEFE 74,185 303,289
Share capital R& 7R 243,381 201,343
Reserves (note) (M sE) (169,196) 101,946
Total equity Wi 74,185 303,289
Note: MEE -

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the prior ZARBFHERAFERBEFE 2EBHMT :

years are as follows:
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BRARAHMBERRBER2EH

Share Convertible Capital
Share option notes/bonds redemption Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
8K
BR#E /% EAER
RAEE G4 1 1 HARS iR &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TR TR
As 1 April 2013 R-E-=FmWA-A 137,855 5,031 5,560 292,448 75,263 (194,480) 321,677
Loss and other comprehensive FEEFEREMZERY
expense for the year - - - - - (222,619) (222,619)
Issue of shares upon exercise TEREERETEN
of convertible notes BB 6,956 - (5,560) - - - 1,39
Issue of shares upon exercise BRERTEREORG
of share options 2,072 (1,120 - - - - 952
Recognition of equity-settled DNEREEN R
share-based payments FGPAE S - 82 - - - - 82
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends BRAERRE - - - - - 458 458
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A=t-H 146,883 3,993 B 292,448 75,263 (416,641) 101,946
Loss and other comprehensive FEEBBREMZERY
expense for the year - - - - - (233,065) (233,065)
Issue of convertible bonds ABRREFET - - 61,480 - - - 61,480
Issue of shares upon exercise BREETERETRM
of share options 1,088 (468) - - - - 620
Issue of shares BRD 24,000 - - - - - 24,000
Transaction costs incurred IARERETELEL
in connection with issue RBKA
of convertible bonds - - (115) - - - (115)
Transfer of share premium BRiEE
to distribution surplus ERTY\BH (147,971) - - - 147,971 - -
Special dividend by way IENHEMBARARD
of distribution in specie of ZHAARERIRE
share in a subsidiary - - - - (124,062) - (124,062)
Cancellation and lapse of BRERE AN
share options - (3,525) - - - 3,525 -
At 31 March 2015 R-E-n¥=A=t-H 24,000 - 61,365 292,448 99,172 (646,181) (169,196)
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